



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 - GENERAL TERMS	
1. ABOUT US	
2. THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU AND US	
3. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES	
4. RISK DISCLOSURES	
5. CAPACITY	
6. RESTRICTED COUNTRIES	
7. CLIENT CLASSIFICATION	
8. SUBJECT TO APPLICABLE REGULATIONS	
9. COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN YOU AND US	
10. COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE AND INVESTOR PROTECTION SCHEME	
SECTION 2 – OPENING AND OPERATING YOUR ACCOUNT	8
11. ACCOUNT OPENING	
12. APPROPRIATENESS ASSESSMENT	
13. PROVISION OF INFORMATION	
14. ACCOUNT SECURITY	
15. SUSPENSION OF YOUR ACCOUNT	
SECTION 3 – OUR SERVICES	
16. EXECUTION-ONLY SERVICES	
17. NO INVESTMENT ADVICE OR PERSONAL RECOMMENDATION	
18. NO MANAGEMENT SERVICES	
19. NO FIDUCIARY DUTY	
20. INTRODUCING PARTY AND INDUCEMENTS	
SECTION 4 – QUOTES AND PRICING	10
21. QUOTES AND ORDERS	
22. QUOTES ARE NOT OFFERS	
23. PRICE QUOTATION	
24. MARKET MOVEMENTS AND SLIPPAGE	
25 MANIFEST EDDODS AND LATENCY TRADING	

SECTION 5 - ORDERS AND INSTRUCTIONS	
26. PLACING OF ORDERS	
27. CANCELLING, AMENDING, OR WITHDRAWING ORDERS	
28. AUTHORITY TO ACT ON AN ORDER	
29. RIGHT NOT TO ACCEPT AN ORDER	
30. CLOSING OUT YOUR POSITION AFTER ACCEPTING AN ORDER	
31. CONTROL OF AN ORDER PRIOR TO EXECUTION	
32. LIMITS IMPOSED BY A MARKET, AN UNDERLYING MARKET OR US	
33. MARKET OR LIQUIDITY PROVIDER ACTION	
34. ORDER EXECUTION AND HANDLING	
35. AGGREGATION OF ORDERS	
36. CONFIRMATIONS	
37. BROKERS AND OTHER AGENTS	
SECTION 6 – LEVERAGE AND MARGIN TRADING	12
38. BALANCE AND EQUITY	
39. MARGIN AND FREE MARGIN	
40. MARGIN TRADING AND LEVERAGE RATIO	
41. MARGIN CALL	
42. AUTO-STOP-OUT	
43. LIEN	
SECTION 7 – ELECTRONIC TRADING SERVICES	14
44. ACCESS TO AND USE OF THE ELECTRONIC TRADING SERVICES	
45. TERMINATION, SUSPENSION, AND CHANGE OF THE ELECTRONIC TRA	DING SERVICE
46. THIRD PARTY ELECTRONIC TRADING SERVICES	
47. STANDARDS OF USE	
48. ELECTRONIC TRADING	
49. LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY	
50. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	
SECTION 8 – CLIENT MONEY, CUSTODY AND TITLE TRANSFER	16
51. CLIENT MONEY REQUIREMENTS	
52. CEASING TO TREAT MONEY AS CLIENT MONEY AND TITLE TRANSFER	
53. TRANSFER OF BUSINESS	

SECTION 9 – CHARGES AND FEES	
54. CHARGES AND FEES	
55. INTEREST ON ACCOUNT BALANCE	
SECTION 10 - PAYMENTS, INTEREST, REMITTANCE, CURRENCY AND CALCULATIONS	
56. PAYMENTS	
57. INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENT	
58. MONEY REMITTANCE	
59. CURRENCY	
60. CALCULATIONS	
SECTION 11 - REGULATORY REPORTING	18
61. REGULATORY REPORTING	
62. NO REPORTING ON YOUR BEHALF	
63. PORTFOLIO RECONCILIATION AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION	
SECTION 12 – CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	19
64. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	
SECTION 13 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	20
65. YOUR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	
SECTION 14 – EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND TERMINATION	21
66. EVENTS OF DEFAULT	
67. RIGHTS UNDER AN EVENT OF DEFAULT	
68. NO WAIVER	
69. TERMINATION OF THESE TERMS	
SECTION 15 – LIMITATION ON LIABILITY AND INDEMNITIES	23
70. EXCLUSION OF LIABILITY	
71. INDEMNITY	
SECTION 16 – CORPORATE EVENTS	23
72. ADJUSTMENTS TO ORDERS AND POSITIONS	
SECTION 17 – DATA PROTECTION	24
73. DATA PROTECTION	

SECTION 18 – MISCELLANEOUS	24
74. LANGUAGE	
75. NOTICES	
76. OUR RIGHTS AND REMEDIES	
77. FORCE MAJEURE	
78. AMENDMENTS	
79. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999	
80. SURVIVING TERMS	
81. POLICIES	
82. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY	
83. ASSIGNMENT	
84. CONFIDENTIALITY	
85. RIGHT TO SET-OFF	
86. SEVERANCE	
87. RECORDING AND MONITORING OF COMMUNICATIONS	
88. OUR RECORDS	
89. YOUR RECORDS	
90. CO-OPERATION FOR PROCEEDINGS	
91. ENTIRE AGREEMENT	
92. GOVERNING LAW	
93. JURISDICTION	
94. SERVICE OF PROCESS	
95. INTERPRETATION	
SCHEDULE A - TRADING CONTRACTS FOR DIFFERENCE	30
1. WHAT IS CFD TRADING?	
2. THE KEY RISKS OF CFD TRADING	
3. PRODUCT PRICING	
4. COSTS AND FEES	
5. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	
6. LEVERAGE AND MARGIN	
7. RIGHTS IN THE UNDERLYING INSTRUMENT	
8. CFDS ON CRYPTOASSETS	

SECTION 1 – GENERAL TERMS

1. ABOUT US

Exinity UK Ltd is licensed and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority with license number 777911. The firm's registered office is 1st St. Katharine's Way, London, E1W 1UN, United Kingdom.

"Exinity Connect" is the trade name of Exinity UK Ltd.

2. THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU AND US

- 2.1 "Exinity Connect", "we", "us", and "our" in these Terms refer to Exinity UK Ltd (including any successor and assignee). If you are an Entity, references to "you" and "your" includes the Entity (and any successor and assignee) and any Authorised Individuals. Other defined terms are set out in Clause 95.
- 22 These Terms and Conditions including the Schedules (these "Terms") together with any documents referred to in these Terms including the Risk Warning Notice, Privacy Policy (each as amended from to time), and any other Policy, form the agreement between you and Exinity UK Ltd (the "Agreement").
- 2.3 These Terms set out the general terms that govern our relationship with you. Where you trade in a specific Product offered by us from time to time, the terms that apply to that Product are set out in the relevant Schedule. You must read and agree to these Terms and the relevant Schedule that apply to the Products that you intend to trade.
- 24 In the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of a Schedule and other provisions of these Terms, the Schedule will prevail to the extent necessary.
- 25 In the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of these Terms and the other provisions of the Agreement, these Terms will prevail to the extent necessary.
- 26 You are responsible for checking our Website regularly and reviewing the current version of the Agreement. We have the right to amend these Terms in accordance with Clause 78.
- 2.7 These Terms supersede any previous agreement between you and us on the same subject matter and will apply to all transactions contemplated under these Terms.
- 2.8 The Agreement will apply when you expressly agree to these Terms or when you access or use our Services, which will be deemed as your acceptance of the Agreement.
- 29 If you have any questions about the Agreement, please contact us using the details set out in Clause 9.1 below.

3. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

- 3.1 Subject to these Terms, we shall provide to you a non-advisory, non-management, and execution-only service (including any Electronic Trading Services) as described in Clause 16, and any other services that we may offer from time to time in relation to the Products.
- 32 We reserve the right not to offer one or more Products to you in accordance with the Agreement

4. RISK DISCLOSURES

- 4.1 OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES ARE NOT SUITABLE FOR EVERYONE AND CARRY RISKS. BY ENTERING INTO THESE TERMS AND EACH TIME YOU PLACE AN ORDER WITH US, YOU REPRESENT TO US THAT YOU HAVE READ, UNDERSTOOD, AND ACCEPTED THE RISKS SPECIFIED IN THESE TERMS, THE SCHEDULES APPLICABLE TO THE RELEVANT PRODUCTS, AND THE RISK WARNING NOTICE (AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME) WHICH IS AVAILABLE ON OUR WEBSITE.
- 42 Investments in securities and derivative products (including rolling spot forex) may carry a high degree of risk as further explained in our Risk Warning Notice. Our Services are not appropriate for you unless you are knowledgeable and experienced in the financial services market and in the types of transactions and Products described in these Terms. By entering into these Terms, you acknowledge and agree that you have the appropriate knowledge and experience to use our Services, that you understand the risks involved and that you have provided us with all the information necessary for us to confirm our Services are appropriate for you. If you are unsure about whether our Services are appropriate for you then you should consult an independent financial adviser.

5. CAPACITY

- 5.1 We may act as principal or agent on your behalf when providing our Services to you.
- 5.2 You shall only act as principal when entering into transactions or using our Services. You shall not at any time act as agent or trustee on behalf of another person.

6. RESTRICTED COUNTRIES

6.1 We may not provide our Services in whole or in part to clients who are domiciled or resident in Restricted Countries. We may change the list of the Restricted Countries, as well as the Services that are available in a Restricted Country, from time to time. Please contact us if you require further information.

6.2 If you or your Authorised Individuals travel to or through a Restricted Country, you may not have access to your Account or any of our Services during your travel. This restriction applies even if you do not normally reside in that country or jurisdiction. We are not liable for any Losses which result from your or your Authorised Individual's inability to access or delay in accessing your Account or our Services because you or your Authorised Individuals are in a Restricted Country.

7 CLIENT CLASSIFICATION

- 7.1 Upon receiving your application form for an Account, we will make appropriate assessments to classify you as either a professional client or an eligible counterparty for the purposes of the FCA Rules.
- 7.2 If you are categorised as an eligible counterparty, we will not be required under the FCA Rules to provide certain protections or information which are available for professional clients. In these circumstances, we will provide you with a Client Categorisation Notice, setting out the regulatory protections that you would lose as an eligible counterparty.
- 7.3 You may request at any time to be reclassified to a different classification and therefore increase your level of protection. We shall reasonably assess each request by you in light of your experience, expertise and knowledge and will, at our discretion, determine the appropriate classification in accordance with such criteria.
- 7.4 If you request to be categorised as a retail client, or if your circumstances change so that you satisfy the definition of a retail client under the FCA Rules, we will not be able to provide the Services to you.
- 7.5 You agree and acknowledge that you are responsible for keeping us informed about any change or information that may affect your client classification.

8. SUBJECT TO APPLICABLE REGULATIONS

- 8.1 These Terms and all Positions and transactions entered under these Terms are subject to Applicable Regulations, so that:
 - (a) to the extent there is any conflict between these Terms and any Applicable Regulations, the latter will prevail;
 - (b) we may take or omit to take any action we consider necessary to ensure compliance with any Applicable Regulations;
 - (c) any action or omission that we take or omit to take in order to comply with any Applicable Regulations shall be binding on you;
 - (d) any action or omission that we take or omit to take for the purpose of complying with any Applicable Regulations shall not render us or any of our directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives or Affiliates (including any directors, officers, employees, agents or representative of our Affiliates) liable to you; and
 - (e) nothing in these Terms will exclude or restrict any obligation that we have towards you which cannot be so excluded or restricted under Applicable Regulations.

9. COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN YOU AND US

Communicating with us

- 9.1 You may communicate with us by email at connect@exinity.com or connect.trading@exinity.com where applicable.
- 92 However, you must only place Orders in accordance with Clause 26 and deliver notices in accordance with Clause 75.

Communicating with you

- 9.3 You expressly consent to us communicating with you via the Platforms, our Website, email, telephone, electronic chats, and any other means of communication.
- 9.4 We will use the contact details you gave us when you applied for your Account, and as updated by you, as notified to us. If your contact details change (including your country of residence or nationality), you agree to inform us immediately prior to or upon such change.

Electronic communications

- 9.5 Acceptance of any document via electronic means including by means of a tick-box, sending an email, and confirming on the Platforms, will constitute evidence of your acceptance of the document.
- 9.6 If electronic signatures are used in a communication between us, such communication is binding as if it were signed in writing.

Telephone communications

9.7 You agree that we may record all telephone conversations or any communications by other means between you and us (including face to face meetings) without use of a warning tone, and use such recordings, or transcripts of such recordings, as well as any emails, recorded chat messages or other communications you send to us for training purposes, for the purposes of investigating any complaint you may make, or for any other legal or regulatory purposes including as evidence in any dispute or anticipated dispute between you and us. We shall retain records of all telephone or any communications by other means for the duration required by Applicable Regulations. We will provide a copy of such records to you within a reasonable period of your request and may charge a fee for such provision of records. Such records will also be accepted by you as evidence of orders placed or other instructions given.

10. COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE AND INVESTOR PROTECTION SCHEME

10.1 We have internal procedures for handling complaints fairly and promptly. You may submit a complaint to us by letter, telephone, e-mail, or in person. Our contact details are set out in Clause 9.1.

- 102 We will send you a written acknowledgement of your complaint within ten (10) Business Days of receipt of your complaint. We shall provide information about our complaints procedures, and when and how you may be able to refer your complaint to the UK Financial Ombudsman Service. Please contact us if you would like further details about how we handle complaints.
- 103 Exinity UK Ltd is covered by the UK Financial Services Compensation Scheme ("FSCS"). If Exinity UK Ltd fails and you make an eligible claim, the FSCS may compensate you for the money in your Account up to a maximum as defined by the FSCS. For more information about the FSCS, visit fscs.org.uk or call the FSCS at 0800 678 1100 or +44 20 7741 4100.
- 10.4 The FSCS protection is only available for regulated products.

SECTION 2 - OPENING AND OPERATING YOUR ACCOUNT

11. ACCOUNT OPENING

- 11.1 We will only be able to open your Account with us if you have completed the application form and provided us with the information that we request in accordance with our client onboarding processes and procedures. This includes information that enables us to identify and verify your identity and conduct fraud and sanction checks, anti-money laundering and counter-terrorism checks, and any other checks required under the Applicable Regulations and our internal Policies and procedures.
- 11.2 We reserve the right to decline your application for an Account at our sole discretion and without providing a reason, to the extent permitted by Applicable Regulations.

12. APPROPRIATENESS ASSESSMENT

- 12.1 We may be required under the FCA Rules to assess on one or more occasions whether the Products and Services that we offer to you are appropriate for you (the "Appropriateness Assessment").
- 12.2 Where you have been classified as a professional client, we may be entitled under the FCA Rules to assume that you have the necessary experience and knowledge to understand the risks involved in relation to the Services and Products. Where you have been classified as an eligible counterparty, we may not be required under the FCA Rules to carry out an Appropriateness Assessment.
- 123 You agree and acknowledge that any Appropriateness Assessment we carry out on you is based on the information provided by you, and we may rely upon that information. We will not be responsible for any Losses which may arise from any error, incompleteness, inaccuracy, or inconsistency in the information you provided. In addition, you agree to notify us immediately of any changes to the information which you have provided, and to provide us with up-to-date, accurate and complete information to enable us to conduct each Appropriateness Assessment. You also agree to provide us such information at our reasonable request.

13. PROVISION OF INFORMATION

- 13.1 You agree to promptly provide us upon our request any information or document which we would require under the Applicable Regulations or our internal Policies and procedures. We may request such information or document at any time, including prior to Account opening. This includes instances when we are required to carry out or refresh our know-your-customer checks and customer due diligence checks.
- 13.2 If any information or document which you have provided to us under the Agreement (including any representations made) changes, becomes inaccurate or misleading, you agree to provide us the updated information or document as soon as possible.
- 133 Any information or document that you provide to us, whether that information or document is required under the Agreement or not, must be complete, accurate and not misleading. If you fail to provide us the required information or document and relevant updates for any changes, or if you provide inaccurate, incomplete or misleading information, we will not be able to open an Account for you, or, if you already have an Account, we may freeze, block, or close your Account at our sole discretion and without liability to you for any Losses that may arise from such action.
- 13.4 You agree and acknowledge that we may use third party organisations and entities to verify any information you have provided to us.

14. ACCOUNT SECURITY

- 14.1 You agree that you will keep the security information in connection to your Account including passwords secret and confidential.
- 14.2 You should not give any third party access to or control of your Account. If you give another person access to or control of your Account, you do so at your own risk and you will be responsible for all decisions of that third party.
- 14.3 If you are an Entity, you may elect to give one or more Authorised Individuals access to or control of your Account but you do so at your own risk. You shall ensure that Authorised Individuals do not disclose the security information in connection to your Account to another person within or outside of your organisation or compromise the security of your Account in any way. You will be responsible for all decisions of the Authorised Individuals and any third party to whom security information has been disclosed by an Authorised Individual.

- 14.4 You agree that we are not required to enquire or verify with you the authority of any Order, transaction, decision or other activity on your Account and we can assume that all activities on your Account are carried out by you, your Authorised Individuals, or another person with your permission.
- 14.5 Without prejudice to Clause 14.4, we will have the right (but not an obligation) to block your access to your Account or to our Services if we believe this is necessary for security or legal reasons.

15. SUSPENSION OF YOUR ACCOUNT

Where we believe, in our reasonable judgment, that you (or other parties) may have engaged or may be engaging in improper, unlawful or unfair trading activity, we may immediately suspend your Account in order to investigate. This may include restricting access rights to your Account, limiting your ability to take any actions in relation to your Account, or any other restrictions as we consider necessary in our sole discretion.

SECTION 3 - OUR SERVICES

16. EXECUTION-ONLY SERVICES

We provide execution-only brokerage services for transactions in the Products. We may receive and transmit your Orders or deal as agent on your behalf (as a riskless principal, matched principal or otherwise) only for the purposes of the execution of transactions.

17. NO INVESTMENT ADVICE OR PERSONAL RECOMMENDATION

- 17.1 We deal with you on an execution-only basis and we will not provide you with any:
 - (a) advice on the merits of a particular Position or transaction;
 - (b) personal recommendations in relation to any open Position or transaction; or
 - (c) investment, legal, regulatory, accounting, tax or other forms of advice in respect of a Position or transaction.
- When placing an Order with us or entering into a transaction with us, you represent that you have made your own independent appraisal of the risks of the transaction, investment or investment strategy. You agree and acknowledge that you will not rely on any opinion, research or analysis expressed or published by us or our Affiliates as advice or recommendation in relation to a Position or transaction.
- 17.3 In the course of our Services to you, we may, at our absolute discretion, provide you with:
 - (a) information in respect of a Position or transaction (specifically in respect of related procedures and risks and method of minimising such risks); and
 - (b) market views, trading ideas or other information, including information about our Products and Services or make other statements to you concerning investments and investment strategy.
- 17.4 Where we do provide such information, you agree and acknowledge that:
 - (a) the provision of information is incidental to your dealing relationship with us and does not amount to advice;
 - (b) we give no representation, warranty or guarantee as to the merits, risks or suitability of an Order, Position, transaction, investment strategy or market condition;
 - (c) the information provided by us is not a recommendation, nor will it represent a comprehensive or verified assessment of the Position or the relevant market. You agree that you will not treat any information or statement, including information about our Products and Services, as investment advice on the suitability of any investment for you;
 - (d) we give no representation, warranty or guarantee as to the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by us;
 - (e) if the information or document provided by us contains a restriction on the person or category of persons for whom that information or document is intended or to whom it is distributed, you shall not pass it on contrary to that restriction; and
 - (f) prior to dispatch of the information, we may have acted upon it ourselves or made use of the information on which it is based. We do not make representations as to the time of receipt by you and cannot guarantee that you will receive such information at the same time as other clients.

18. NO MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We will not provide any portfolio management or discretionary management services to you.

19. NO FIDUCIARY DUTY

Unless specifically agreed between us in writing, our provision of a Service to you will not give rise to any fiduciary or equitable duties on our part, on part of our Affiliates or our employees. You agree that nothing contained in these Terms will create a fiduciary, trustee, agency, joint venture or partnership relationship between you and us, you and our Affiliates or you and our employees.

20. INTRODUCING PARTY AND INDUCEMENTS

- 20.1 If you are introduced to us by a third party (an "Introducing Party"), you acknowledge and agree that:
 - (a) our responsibility is limited to our Services, which are execution-only in nature;
 - (b) we have no responsibility or obligation, and give no warranty, representation or endorsement, regarding the conduct, action,

representation, advice, recommendation or statement of an Introducing Party on which you have, or may have, relied on at the time of entering into, or during the life cycle, of a Position;

- (c) subject to the FCA Rules, we have no responsibility or obligation to verify the legal standing or regulatory status of an Introducing Party; and
- (d) unless we have confirmed otherwise to you in writing:
 - (i) an Introducing Party is an independent intermediary;
 - (ii) an Introducing Party is not our agent, representative or Affiliate; and
 - (iii) an Introducing Party is not authorised to make a representation or statement regarding us,
 - our Affiliates or our Services, except to the extent necessary for your introduction to us.
- 20.2 You acknowledge and agree that, under Applicable Regulations, we may make or receive a payment of a fee, commission or non-monetary benefit to or from an Introducing Party or another third party ("Inducement"), provided that such Inducement is designed to enhance the quality of the service supplied to you and does not impair our obligation to act honestly, fairly, professionally and in accordance with your best interests. Pursuant to Applicable Regulations, if you have been introduced to us for trading purposes, we will clearly disclose to you the existence of any Inducement. Where the amount of the inducement cannot be ascertained, we will disclose the method for its calculation.

SECTION 4 - QUOTES AND PRICING

21. QUOTES AND ORDERS

You may open or close a Position with us by placing a 'buy' or 'sell' Order at the prices we quote to you.

22. QUOTES ARE NOT OFFERS

A quote provided by us is indicative and is not an offer to open or close a Position at the quoted price. A Position is opened at the quoted price only once an Order is accepted by us.

23. PRICE QUOTATION

The way in which the prices that we quote to you are established will be dependent on the Product. Further information may be contained in the relevant Schedule for each Product and in our Order Execution Policy.

24. MARKET MOVEMENTS AND SLIPPAGE

- 24.1 When we quote a price, market conditions may move between the time the quote is given and the time your Order is executed. Such movement may be in your favour or against it, and your Order will be executed at the price prevailing at the time of Order execution.
- 24.2 Prices that may be quoted or traded upon, from time to time, by other market makers or third parties will not apply to trades between us and you.
- 24.3 A quote we provide to you is valid only at the time it has been provided and is subject to change. Therefore, spreads, market spreads as well as the cost of opening or closing out a Position may change significantly depending on the prevailing market conditions and our quoted price.

25. MANIFEST ERRORS AND LATENCY TRADING

- 25.1 From time to time it is possible that errors may occur in the quotes or pricing of our Products, the Market, or the Underlying Market. Notwithstanding the rights that you have under Applicable Regulations, we reserve the right to void, or to amend the terms of, any Order or any transaction that we reasonably believe, at our sole discretion, to contain or be based on an obvious or palpable error ("Manifest Error"). In deciding whether an error is a Manifest Error we may take into account any relevant information including, the state of the Market or Underlying Market at the time of the error and any error within, or lack of clarity of, any information source or pronouncement.
- 25.2 Where we believe, in our reasonable judgment, that latency on the Platform or other features or components of our system, as determined in our sole discretion, are being exploited by you, we may at our absolute discretion void, close, reverse, or amend all trades or return to you only funds deposited net of any earlier withdrawals, and then may proceed to close your Account.
- 25.3 In the absence of our fraud, wilful default or gross negligence, we will not be liable to you for any Losses, including the following:
 (a) the exercise of our rights pursuant to Clause 25.2; or
 - (b) a Manifest Error (including a Manifest Error that is made by any information source, commentator or official on whom we reasonably rely).

SECTION 5 - ORDERS AND INSTRUCTIONS

26. PLACING OF ORDERS

- 26.1 You may place an Order and give dealing and account instructions electronically through the relevant API or Platform, unless we notify you that instructions can be given in an alternative manner.
- 26.2 We will only act upon an Order (and your Position is only opened) once the Order is received and accepted by us and we will have no liability to you for any Losses that may arise from delayed receipt of an Order, or non-receipt of an Order.

27. CANCELLING, AMENDING, OR WITHDRAWING ORDERS

You may only cancel or amend your Orders if we have not acted upon those Orders.

28. AUTHORITY TO ACT ON AN ORDER

- 28.1 We will be entitled to act for you upon any Order, instruction or communication given or purporting to be given by you, your Authorised Individuals or any person authorised on your behalf without further enquiry as to the genuineness, authority or identity of the person giving or purporting to give such Orders. You will be responsible for and bound by all obligations we enter into or assume on your behalf as a result of or in connection with such Orders, instructions or communications.
- 28.2 You are responsible for any Losses incurred by us for acting or attempting to act on any Orders given or purporting to be given by you or any person authorised to act on your behalf.
- If your Order is incomplete, unclear or ambiguous you agree that we may in our absolute discretion and without any liability on our part act or decline to act upon what we believe in good faith the Order to be.

29. RIGHT NOT TO ACCEPT AN ORDER

- 29.1 We will not be obliged to accept an Order. If we decline to accept an Order, we will not be obliged to give you a reason, but we shall promptly notify you in accordance with the Applicable Regulations.
- 29.2 You agree that we will not be liable for any Losses that you or your Affiliates may incur by reason of:
 - (a) our decision not to accept an Order;
 - (b) our omission or delay in notifying you that we did not accept your Order; or
 - (c) our refusal to act on an Order until any incompleteness, unclarity, ambiguity or conflict in the Order has been resolved to our satisfaction.

30. CLOSING OUT YOUR POSITION AFTER ACCEPTING AN ORDER

Without prejudice to the generality of Clauses 28 and 29, if we have accepted an Order and we subsequently suspect:

- (a) the person who provided the Order or instruction was acting in excess of their authority; or
- (b) the Order or instruction infringes or would infringe upon any Applicable Regulations, our Policies or these Terms, we may, in our absolute discretion, close such Positions at the then prevailing price quoted on the Platform or treat that Position as having been void from the outset.

31. CONTROL OF AN ORDER PRIOR TO EXECUTION

- 31.1 We will have the right, at our absolute discretion, to set limits and parameters to control your ability to place an Order or to give instructions. We may amend, increase, decrease, remove, or add to the limits and parameters set from time to time. The limits and parameters may include:
 - (a) controls over the Margin requirements;
 - (b) controls over the maximum Order amount and maximum Order size;
 - (c) controls over our total exposure to you;
 - (d) controls over the price at which an Order may be submitted (including controls over an Order which is at a price that differs from the market price at the time the Order is submitted);
 - (e) controls over the Electronic Trading Services (including any verification procedures to ensure that any particular Order has come from you); and
 - (f) any other limit, parameter or control which we may be required to implement in accordance with Applicable Regulations, our Policies, or these Terms.
- 31.2 You shall be bound by all Orders placed by you notwithstanding any limits, parameters or controls set by us have been breached.

32. LIMITS IMPOSED BY A MARKET, AN UNDERLYING MARKET OR US

A limit on your Positions may be imposed by a Market or an Underlying Market and we may require you to limit the number of open Positions which you may have with us at any time and we may in our sole discretion close one or more Positions in order to ensure that such Position limits are maintained.

33. MARKET OR LIQUIDITY PROVIDER ACTION

If a Market or Liquidity Provider (or intermediate broker or agent, acting at the direction of, or as a result of action taken by, a Market) or regulatory body takes any action which affects a Position, then we may, at our discretion, take any action that we reasonably consider desirable to minimise any loss which you may incur, or we may incur, as a result of such action. Any such action that we take will be binding on you.

34. ORDER EXECUTION AND HANDLING

- 34.1 We will use our reasonable endeavours to execute an Order promptly, but in accepting your Order we do not warrant that it will be possible to execute such Order or that the execution will be possible according to your instructions or at the price quoted.
- 34.2 We will execute an Order only when the relevant Market or Underlying Market is open for dealing, and we will deal with an Order received outside Market or Underlying Market hours as soon as practicable, when that relevant Market or Underlying Market is next open for business (in accordance with the rules of that Market or Underlying Market).
- 34.3 By accepting these Terms, you give your prior express consent that we may execute an Order on your behalf outside a Market, Underlying Market or other trading venues.
- 34.4. We will take all sufficient steps to provide you with best execution in accordance with the FCA Rules when we execute Orders on your behalf.

35. AGGREGATION OF ORDERS

35.1 We will have the right to aggregate your Order with Orders placed by other clients. Aggregation means that we may combine your Order with those of other clients for execution as a single Order. We will only aggregate Orders if we reasonably consider that the aggregation will not work overall to the disadvantage of any client whose Order is to be aggregated. But aggregation may result in you obtaining a more or less favourable price or otherwise work to your advantage or disadvantage in relation to a particular Order. You acknowledge and agree that we will not be liable to you as a result of a less favourable price being obtained due to aggregation of your Order.

36. CONFIRMATIONS

- 36.1 Subject to the particular terms of a Position, we may send you a confirmation at the end of each trading day detailing the Positions that have been opened or closed on that particular trading day. Such confirmation may be available on the Platform or on any other electronic medium determined by us.
- 36.2 It is your responsibility to inform us if you do not receive a confirmation, or if a confirmation or information relating to a particular Position is incorrect. A confirmation will, in the absence of Manifest Error, be conclusive and binding on you, unless we receive an objection in writing within three (3) Business Days of receipt.

37. BROKERS AND OTHER AGENTS

We may, at our sole discretion, arrange for a transaction to be effected with or through the agency of an intermediate broker or agent, who may be our Affiliate, and may not be in the United Kingdom. Neither we nor our respective directors, officers, employees or agents will be liable to you for any act or omission of an intermediate broker or agent.

SECTION 6 - LEVERAGE AND MARGIN TRADING

38. BALANCE AND EQUITY

- 38.1 The balance in your Account is the sum of money in your Account which comprises of cash you have paid into your Account and any realised profit or loss, as the case may be ("Balance"). For the avoidance of doubt, the profit or loss of an open Position becomes realised in the Account once that Position is closed.
- 38.2 The equity in your Account is the total of the (i) Balance, and (ii) unrealised (floating) profit or loss, as the case may be, on your open Positions ("Equity").

39. MARGIN AND FREE MARGIN

- 39.1 Margin is the portion of your Equity that is required to open and maintain one or more Positions ("Margin"). The Margin required to open and maintain one Position cannot be utilised to open another Position and cannot be withdrawn from your Account.
- 39.2 We may offer some Products on a non-leveraged and fully paid basis which means that the Margin required to open a Position is the full notional value of the Product. We may also offer some Products on a leveraged basis so you may open a Position with a notional value that is higher than the amount of the Margin required. In this case, the Margin funds part of the open Position and the remainder is financed by us.
- Free Margin is the total of (i) the cash held in your Account which is not being used to support a Position, and (ii) any unrealised (floating) profit related to open Positions but excluding any Fully-Paid Positions ("Free Margin"). Free Margin may be utilised as Margin to open another Position.

40. MARGIN TRADING AND LEVERAGE RATIO

- 40.1 We may offer Products in which you can open a Position on a leveraged basis. This Clause 40 does not apply to Fully-Paid
- 40.2 Leverage may be expressed as a ratio. For example, a 10:1 leverage ratio means that you may open a Position with a notional value of GBP 1,000 by utilising GBP 100 of your Equity as Margin.
- 40.3 We may net off the Margin required for a Position against the Margin that is required for an opposite Position in the same Product held in your Account.
- 40.4 The leverage limit for each Product is determined by us, subject to Applicable Regulations, and can be amended from time to time at our discretion. We will endeavour to provide you with reasonable notice of changes to the leverage limit available for a Product where practicable. The leverage limits available for our Products are available from your authorised Exinity Connect contact.
- 40.5 Applicable Regulations may set out the maximum leverage limits which we can offer. Where transactions were executed with a leverage limit that is no longer permitted under Applicable Regulations, we may close any or all of your open Positions without further notice to you and we may also close your Account. This may result in a profit or a loss to you. We will not be liable for any Losses incurred by you as a result.
- 40.6 You are responsible for monitoring any changes to the leverage limit of a Product which occur due to:
 - (a) a change in prevailing Market conditions or conditions of the Underlying Market;
 - (b) an Event of Default or Potential Event of Default or termination event;
 - (c) a change in Applicable Regulations;
 - (d) a risk assessment; or
 - (e) increased market volatility.
- 40.7 We will be entitled, at any time, to increase or decrease the Margin requirement. We will only increase Margin requirements where we reasonably consider it necessary, for example but without limitation, in response to or in anticipation of any of the following:
 - (a) a change in the Market or Underlying Market to which your open Positions relate or in the financial markets more generally;
 - (b) economic news which may adversely impact any of your open Positions;
 - (c) an issuer whose securities represent all or part of your investments becoming insolvent, being suspended from trading or undertaking a Corporate Event;
 - (d) you changing your dealing pattern with us or our Affiliate such that we determine in our reasonable discretion that further Margin is required in order to manage the risks associated with your open Positions;
 - (e) deterioration in your credit circumstances or credit quality;
 - (f) your exposure to us or our Affiliate being concentrated in a particular Market or sector;
 - (g) a change in the margin charged by our hedging counterparties or the margin rules set by the relevant Underlying Market, clearer or carrying broker;
 - (h) any change to Applicable Regulations; or
 - (i) there are exceptional events as specified in Clause 77.2.
- 40.8 Trading on margin carries a high level of risk to your capital, and you can lose more than your initial deposit. You should ensure that you fully understand the risks involved and seek independent advice if necessary.

41. MARGIN CALL

- 41.1 This Clause 41 does not apply to Fully-Paid Positions.
- 41.2 You must at all times ensure the Equity in your Account is sufficient to cover the Margin required to maintain your open Positions.

 Subject to the relevant Margin requirements, if the Equity in your Account falls below an amount that equals to one hundred percent of the Margin required, you may:
 - (a) immediately pay into the Account additional sums to cover the Margin required to maintain your open Positions, irrespective of whether we varied the Margin requirement under Clause 40.7;
 - (b) close one or more of your open Positions such that the Equity in your Account becomes sufficient to cover the Margin required to maintain your open Positions; or
 - (c) a combination of the above.
- 41.3 We are not under any obligation to keep you informed of the Balance in your Account or the Margin required or contact you to pay additional sums into your Account as Margin to maintain your open Positions (a "Margin Call"). However, if we in our discretion do so, the Margin Call may be made by telephone call, email, through the Platform or by other electronic communication.

42. AUTO-STOP-OUT

- 42.1 Your margin level is calculated by dividing the Equity in your Account by the Margin ("Margin Level").
- 42.2 If your Margin Level falls to or below thirty percent of the Margin (or another percentage prescribed by us from time to time or required by Applicable Regulations), some or all of your open Positions will be automatically closed out by our automated risk management system in order to ensure there is sufficient Equity in your Account to meet the Margin requirement (the "Autostop-out"). We may but are not obligated to notify you if your Margin Level is close to or less than the Auto-stop-out level.

42.3 We do not discretionarily manage your portfolio. The automated risk management system may automatically first close the open Position that carries the greatest loss, irrespective of whether such open Position caused the Auto-stop-out to be triggered. The automated risk management system may then close such number of additional open Positions successively until the Equity in your Account meets the Margin requirement. You should be prepared for the automated risk management system to close all your open Positions.

43. LIEN

In addition and without prejudice to any rights to which we may be entitled under these Terms and any Applicable Regulations, we will have a general lien on all property held by us, our Affiliates, and our nominees on your behalf until satisfaction of the Secured Obligations.

SECTION 7 - ELECTRONIC TRADING SERVICES

44. ACCESS TO AND USE OF THE ELECTRONIC TRADING SERVICES

- 44.1 We may allow you to access and use one or more Electronic Trading Services.
- 4.2 Any Electronic Trading Service that we provide to you is for your personal use only and for the sole purposes, and subject to the provisions, of these Terms. You shall not directly or indirectly provide, sell or lease any Electronic Trading Service, or any portion thereof, to any third party including your Affiliates without our prior written consent.
- 44.3 You shall be responsible for providing the Access Method to enable you to access and use an Electronic Trading Service. You must test your Access Method prior to using it in a live environment and you will be responsible for any errors or failure as a result of the implementation of the Access Method.
- 4.4 You will be responsible for all Orders entered by you or on your behalf via the Electronic Trading Services and you will be fully liable to us for the settlement of any transaction arising from them.

45. TERMINATION, SUSPENSION, AND CHANGE OF THE ELECTRONIC TRADING SERVICE

- 45.1 We will have the right to suspend or permanently withdraw an Electronic Trading Service, by giving you ten (10) Business Days' written notice.
- 45.2 We will have the right unilaterally, without notice and with immediate effect:
 - (a) to suspend or terminate permanently your access and ability to use any Electronic Trading Service, or any part thereof;
 - (b) to change the nature, composition, or availability of the Electronic Trading Service; and
 - (c) to change any limits we set on the trading you may conduct through the Electronic Trading Service,

where we consider it necessary or desirable to do so due to:

- (i) your non-compliance with Applicable Regulations;
- (ii) your breach of any provisions in the Agreement;
- (iii) an occurrence of an Event of Default;
- (iv) a security breach and suspension or withdrawal of the Electronic Trading Service is necessary to protect you or us;
- (v) maintenance of the Electronic Trading Services and systems;
- (vi) system errors, network problems or failure of power supply;
- (vii) failure of the relevant Market or Underlying Market, or clearing house; or
- (viii) other reasons, whether they relate to Electronic Trading Services or not, provided that we always act in good faith.
- 45.3 Your access and use of an Electronic Trading Service, or any part thereof, may be terminated automatically:
 - (a) upon the termination of these Terms;
 - (b) upon the termination of any licence granted to us which relates to our provision of the Electronic Trading Service;
 - (c) upon withdrawn of the Electronic Trading Service by any Market or Underlying Market; and
 - (d) we are required to withdraw the Electronic Trading Service to comply with any Applicable Regulations.
- Where your access or use of an Electronic Trading Service has been terminated for whatever reason, you shall upon our request return to us or destroy all hardware, software and documentation we may have provided you in connection with such Electronic Trading Service and any copies thereof.

46. THIRD PARTY ELECTRONIC TRADING SERVICES

- We may provide the whole or part of an Electronic Trading Service under licence from third parties ("Third Party Electronic Trading Service"), including the Platforms. You agree to comply with any additional restrictions on your access or use of a Third Party Electronic Trading Service that we may communicate to you from time to time, or that are otherwise the subject of an agreement between you and such licensors.
- 46.2 You use any Third Party Electronic Trading Services at your own risk.
- 46.3 It is solely your responsibility to evaluate the functionality of any such Third Party Electronic Trading Services before downloading or accessing them or entering into transactions with us using any Third Party Electronic Trading Services.

46.4 Third Party Electronic Trading Services are provided to you on an 'as is' basis, without any warranty, guarantee, representation or assurance of any kind, express or implied, including their suitability to you or their fitness for a particular purpose.

47. STANDARDS OF USE

- 47.1 Each time that you access or use an Electronic Trading Service, you agree and warrant to us that you will:
 - (a) not use any software, automated algorithm or trading strategy, artificial intelligence, ultra-high speed or mass data entry, or other techniques other than those that we make available to you on the Electronic Trading Service, except where we have provided our prior written consent which may be subject to conditions at our sole discretion;
 - (b) ensure that your Access Method (i) is maintained in good order (including applying adequate ad regular virus testing), (ii) is suitable for accessing and using the Electronic Trading Service, and (iii) satisfies any requirements which we have notified you from time to time;
 - (c) inform us immediately of any unauthorised access to such Electronic Trading Service or any unauthorised Order or instruction which you know of or suspect and, if within your control, cause such unauthorised use to cease;
 - (d) inform us immediately of any material defect, malfunction, or virus in your Access Method or in the Electronic Trading Service, and cease all access and use of the Electronic Trading Service until you have received permission from us to resume access or use;

 (e) not act in an unfair, abusive, manipulative, or unlawful way when using the Electronic Trading Service (including avoiding any
 - (e) not act in an unfair, abusive, manipulative, or unlawful way when using the Electronic Trading Service (including avoiding any security features of the Electronic Trading Service); and
 - (f) not carry out, purport to carry out, or facilitate any person to carry out one or more of the following activities, unless you have received our prior written consent:
 - (i) copy, alter, amend, modify, interfere or tamper with the Electronic Trading Services or any part thereof; or
 - (ii) reverse compile or disassemble the Electronic Trading Services.
- 47.2 You agree to comply with any requirements in relation to information technology, systems, protocols or standards that we have notified you from time to time in order for you to access or use any Electronic Trading Service.

48. ELECTRONIC TRADING

- Where an Electronic Trading Service enables you to have electronic access to a Market or Underlying Market on which you may submit Orders or receive information or data, you agree that we may require that you provide us with information in relation to your use or intended use of this service.
- 48.2 You agree that we may monitor your use of the electronic access service, and you must comply with any conditions required by us. We may at our absolute discretion remove your electronic access at any time.
- 48.3 These Terms set out the essential rights and obligations between you and us in relation to the provision by us of electronic access service to a Market or Underlying Market. We retain responsibility for obligations under the FCA Rules in connection with such electronic access services and are responsible for ensuring you comply with the FCA Rules and with the rules of any applicable Market or Underlying Market in connection with your activities through such access. You acknowledge and agree that such responsibility will not affect the contractual rights and obligations between us in respect of your use of our electronic access services.

49. LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY

- 49.1 This Clause 49 will apply to our Electronic Trading Services in addition to, and not in limitation or exclusion of, any other provisions in these Terms relating to the limitation of our liability and the provision of indemnities.
- 49.2 We will not be held liable for any claim, damages or other liability (including loss of funds, direct or indirect losses, data or service interruptions, delays, inaccuracies, errors and omission in data provided) whether in contract, tort or otherwise, arising from or in connection with:
 - (a) the use, operation, performance, error or malfunction of any Electronic Trading Service (including any Third Party Electronic Trading Service); or
 - (b) any computer viruses, worms, software bombs or similar items introduced into your computer hardware or software (including your Access Method) via any Electronic Trading Services (including any Third Party Electronic Trading Service), other than as a result of our fraud, willful default or gross negligence.
- 49.3 We will not be liable to you for any Losses which you may suffer as a result of transmission errors, technical faults, malfunctions, illegal intervention in network equipment, network overloads, malicious blocking of access by third parties, internet malfunctions, interruptions or other deficiencies on the part of internet service providers.
- 49.4 You acknowledge and agree that Electronic Trading Services may not be provided on a continuous basis and neither we nor any third party provider accept any liability in this respect.
- 49.5 We will not be liable for any Losses whatsoever arising from any unauthorised use of the Electronic Trading Service.
- 49.6 We will not be liable for any act taken by or on the instruction of a Market, Underlying Market, clearing house or regulatory body.
- 49.7 You will ensure that no computer viruses, worms, software bombs or similar items are introduced into our computer system or network and you will indemnify us on demand for any Losses that we suffer arising as a result of any such introduction.
- 49.8 You will, on demand, indemnify, protect and hold us harmless from and against all Losses, judgements, suits, actions, or proceedings resulting from or arising out of any act or omission by any person using an Electronic Trading Service by using your designated passwords, whether or not you authorised such use.

50. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

- 50.1 You acknowledge that all proprietary rights in our Electronic Trading Services are owned by us and by any applicable third party licensors or third party service providers engaged by us, and are protected under copyright, trademark and other intellectual property laws and other applicable law. All intellectual property rights whether registered or unregistered relating to the Electronic Services remain vested in us, our licensors, and our service providers (as the case may be). You receive no copyright, intellectual property rights or other rights in or to any Electronic Trading Service, except those set out in these Terms.
- 50.2 We and our licensors will retain the intellectual property rights in all elements of the software and such software and databases contained within the Electronic Trading Services and you will not in any circumstances, obtain title or interest in such elements other than as set out in these Terms.
- Any publicly registered Internet Protocol addresses ("IP Addresses") assigned to you by Exinity Connect in connection with the Electronic Trading Service will be used solely in connection with the Electronic Trading Service. In the event that the Electronic Trading Service is discontinued for any reason or these Terms are terminated, you will have no further right to use the IP Addresses.
- You shall preserve and not violate our proprietary rights (and those of our licensors and service providers) in the Electronic Trading Services and comply with our reasonable requests to protect our contractual, statutory and common law rights (and those of our licensors and service providers) in our Electronic Trading Services. You shall notify us immediately if you are aware of any violation of such rights.

SECTION 8 - CLIENT MONEY, CUSTODY AND TITLE TRANSFER

51. CLIENT MONEY REQUIREMENTS

- 51.1 This Clause 51 is subject to Clause 52.
- 51.2 Unless otherwise provided in these Terms, we will treat money received from you or held by us on your behalf in accordance with the Client Money Rules.
- 51.3 We may deposit money received from you in a client bank account with a bank, a regulated electronic money institution (EMI), a credit institution incorporated in the United Kingdom, or a bank which is authorised outside of the United Kingdom. We may also allow another third party (including a Market or Underlying Market, intermediate broker, settlement agent, depositary or clearing house) to hold client money in order to effect one or more transactions through or with that person or to satisfy your obligation to provide collateral in respect of a transaction. You agree that we have no responsibility or liability for any insolvency, acts or omissions of any bank, credit institution or other third party to whom we pass money received from you. The bank, credit institution or other third party to whom we pass money may hold it in a pooled omnibus account.
- 51.4 We may hold client money on your behalf outside the United Kingdom. The legal and regulatory regime applying to any such bank or third party will be different from that of the United Kingdom. In the event of the insolvency or any other analogous proceedings in relation to that bank or third party, your money may be treated in a way that is different to how the money would have been treated had it been held in the United Kingdom.
- 51.5 We will not place money received from you in a qualifying money market fund without your prior written consent.
- 51.6 Unless otherwise agreed between us in writing, we will not pay interest to you, nor account to you for any profits earned, on client money. You acknowledge that you therefore waive any entitlement to interest under the Client Money Rules or otherwise.
- 51.7 We may deposit your money with a depositary who may have a security interest, lien or right of set-off in relation to that money under certain circumstances to the extent permitted by the FCA Rules.

52. CEASING TO TREAT MONEY AS CLIENT MONEY AND TITLE TRANSFER

Additional security interest

52.1 By entering into these Terms, you grant to us with full title guarantee, as a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Obligations, a first fixed security interest in all your money that we may cease to treat as client money in accordance with the Client Money Rules. You agree that we will be entitled to apply that money in, or towards the satisfaction of, all or any part of the Secured Obligations which are due and payable to us but unpaid.

Ceasing to treat money as client money

- You agree and acknowledge that where we transfer money held for you out of the relevant client money account to a third party on your instructions, this will involve a transfer of full ownership of the money to that third party, in which case you will no longer have a proprietary claim to such money.
- Where any Obligations owing to us from you are due and payable, we may cease to treat as client money an amount of money held on your behalf that is equal to the amount of those Obligations in accordance with the Client Money Rules. You agree that we may apply that money in, or towards the satisfaction of, all or part of those Obligations due and payable to us. For the purposes of these client money terms, any such Obligations become immediately due and payable, without notice or demand by us, when incurred by you or on your behalf.

Title transfer

- You and we may agree that you do not require money which is transferred by you to us to be held in accordance with the Client Money Rules. Any such agreement must be in our agreed form and signed by you (the "Title Transfer Agreement"). By signing the Title Transfer Agreement, we will treat any transfer of money by you to us as a transfer of full ownership of money to us for the purpose of securing or covering your Obligations, and we will not hold such money in accordance with the Client Money Rules.
- 52.5 You acknowledge that by signing the Title Transfer Agreement you will no longer have a proprietary claim over money transferred to us and we can deal with it in our own right, and you will rank as a general creditor of ours. By placing money with us under a Title Transfer Agreement, you agree that all money you place on your account is done so in anticipation of an open Position and therefore has the purpose of securing or covering your Obligations to us. You should not place any money with us that is not for the purpose of securing or covering your Obligations to us.
- 52.6 We may require that you enter into a Title Transfer Agreement before we provide, or continue to provide, certain Products or Services to you.

Unclaimed client money

52.7 You agree that we may, in our sole discretion, decide to pay to a registered charity of our choice any money that we hold for you as client money if there has been no activity on your Account for six (6) years (notwithstanding any payments or receipts of charges, interest or similar items) and we have been unable to contact you having taken reasonable steps in accordance with the Client Money Rules to trace you and return the money, in which case we will cease to treat such money as client money. In such circumstances, we or an Affiliate unconditionally undertake to pay you a sum equal to the relevant client money balance paid away in the event that you seek to claim the client money balance in future.

53. TRANSFER OF BUSINESS

You agree that we may transfer to another person, as part of a transfer of business to that person, client money balances, provided that:

- (a) the sums transferred will be held for you by the person to whom they are transferred in accordance with the Client Money Rules; or
- (b) if not held in accordance with the Client Money Rules, we will exercise all due skill, care and diligence in assessing whether the person to whom the client money is transferred will apply adequate measures to protect these sums.

SECTION 9 - CHARGES AND FEES

54. CHARGES AND FEES

54.1 The charges and fees for our Services are set out in the onboarding pack provided to you and are also available upon request to your authorised Exinity Connect contact.

55. INTEREST ON ACCOUNT BALANCE

55.1 Where Bank of England base rate or equivalent rates for non-Sterling currencies (as applicable to your Account) are negative, we will have the right to deduct amounts equal to that negative rate on a quarterly basis from the Equity in your Account. You agree that such deductions may mean that the Equity in your Account could fall below the Margin requirement. For the avoidance of doubt, we will not be required to pay to you any interest on your Account balance.

SECTION 10 - PAYMENTS, INTEREST, REMITTANCE, CURRENCY AND CALCULATIONS

56. PAYMENTS

- 5.1 Unless otherwise specified under these Terms or otherwise agreed between you and us, all payments due and payable from you to us are due immediately upon our demand and must be made by you and received by us in full in cleared funds in your Account (or in another bank account designated by us) and in such currency as we may from time to time specify. All payments from you will be made without any deduction or withholding.
- We will have the right to levy a reasonable administration charge for processing your payments which will generally reflect the cost to us in providing the particular payment method to you. Such charges will be due and payable at the time of the payment.
- We may in our absolute discretion reject any payments from you or a third party and return funds to source, where we consider it appropriate to do so in accordance with Applicable Regulations or our Policies (including those relating to the prevention of fraud, countering terrorist financing, insolvency, money laundering or tax offence). We may not accept any payments from a bank account if it is not evident to us that the bank account is in your name. Our rejection of a payment made by you or a third party does not extinguish nor waive your obligation to make such payment to us, or prevent the accrual of any interest.

57. INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENT

You will be required to pay interest to us on any sums due and payable to us that you fail to pay on the relevant due date. Interest will accrue and be compounded on a daily basis from the due date until the date on which payment is received in full in cleared funds, at a rate specified by us from time to time and will be payable to us on demand.

58. MONEY REMITTANCE

- 58.1 Subject to these Terms (including any set-off rights, lien and charge over money held on your behalf), the cash held in your account not being utilised as Margin may be remitted to you upon your request.
- We will have the right (but not an obligation) to remit the Balance in your Account at our own initiative even when you have not made a request.
- The manner in which we remit monies to you will be at our absolute discretion. We will normally remit money in the same method and to the same bank account from which it was received. However, in exceptional circumstances we may, at our absolute discretion, use an alternative method.

59. CURRENCY

- 59.1 We will be entitled to make any currency conversions, without giving notice to you, which we consider reasonably necessary or desirable for the purposes of complying with our obligations or exercising our rights under these Terms or any transaction. Any currency conversion will be made by us in the manner and at the rates we determine to be appropriate, having due regard to the current market rates for currencies.
- 59.2 Where it is necessary to make a currency conversion, you will bear all foreign currency exchange risk arising from any contract or from the compliance by us with our obligations or the exercise by us of our rights under these Terms.
- 59.3 If you trade in any transaction denominated in a currency other than a base currency specified by us, we will automatically convert the profit or loss of the transaction into the base currency applicable to your Account at the time of the transaction. Exchange rates fluctuate and may change between the time that the indicative exchange rate is quoted and the time that the amounts are converted. This means that by trading in a transaction that is denominated in a currency other than a base currency, you are exposing yourself to cross-currency risk. You acknowledge that it is your responsibility to manage this risk and that we are not liable for any losses that you may suffer as a result. Where applicable the confirmation of the conversion will show the exchange rate used.

60. CALCULATIONS

Unless specific calculation methods are otherwise specified under these Terms, we will determine the appropriate calculation method and make all calculations under these Terms acting in good faith.

SECTION 11 - REGULATORY REPORTING

61. REGULATORY REPORTING

- 61.1 You consent to us disclosing information or data in connection with or relating to you, your transactions with us and Positions, or these Terms to the FCA and other regulatory bodies or Markets, to the extent we determine that we are required, permitted or it is desirable to comply with Applicable Regulations or rules of any Market. We may also be required under Applicable Regulations to make public certain information regarding our transactions with you. You acknowledge and agree that we are entitled to report and disclose such information and such information held by us will be our sole and exclusive property.
- 61.2 You agree to provide us with all information that we may reasonably request for the purpose of complying with our obligations under Applicable Regulations. You consent for us to provide to any third party such information about you and your relationship with us pursuant to these Terms (including your transactions and Position, and money on your Account) as we reasonably consider appropriate or as required under any Applicable Regulation or provision under these Terms.

62. NO REPORTING ON YOUR BEHALF

- 62.1 You acknowledge and agree that unless otherwise agreed in writing between you and us, we will not make any reports on your behalf which you may be required to make under any Applicable Regulations.
- 62.2 For the avoidance of doubt, we will not carry out any reporting on your behalf in accordance with UK EMIR, unless we have agreed otherwise in writing. You will remain solely responsible for the reporting of your transactions. Where we agree to report transactions on your behalf, we may charge you an additional fee and impose other conditions.

63. PORTFOLIO RECONCILIATION AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 63.1 The Parties agree to reconcile portfolios as required by the risk mitigation techniques stipulated under UK EMIR. Exinity Connect will provide you with portfolio data and general account information through the Platforms, via email or on a secure website. Account information will include transaction data, ticket numbers, rates, margin, profit and loss statements and any other information required by the FCA Rules ("Confirmations"). Account information will be updated within 24 hours of any activity on your account. You acknowledge and accept that the posting of Confirmations will be deemed delivery of trading Confirmations by Exinity Connect to you. You may request receipt of the Confirmations at any time in hard copy or email by submitting a written request to connect.trading@exinity.com. Such Confirmations will be binding on you, unless subject to a manifest error or unless you notify Exinity Connect of your rejection of such Confirmation in accordance with UK EMIR.
- You can also request daily, monthly and yearly reports of your Account by contacting us at connect.trading@exinity.com. The provision of the Confirmations coupled with your ability to request such reports will be deemed delivery of account statements by Exinity Connect to you. You must perform data reconciliation in accordance with your portfolio reconciliation requirements under Article 13 of the Commission Delegated Regulations (EU) No 149/2013 (as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, as amended, and regulations made thereunder). You may request at any time your account statements in hard copy or via email by submitting a written request to connect.trading@exinity.com.
- 63.3 The Parties agree to use the following procedure to identify and resolve disputes in relation to portfolio reconciliation that may arise between them:
 - (a) Either Party may identify a dispute by sending a dispute notice in writing ("Dispute Notice") to the other Party. Each Dispute Notice will be effectively delivered in accordance with Clause 75.
 - (b) On or following the date that the dispute has been instigated by either Party (the "Dispute Date"), the Parties will consult in good faith in an attempt to resolve the dispute in a timely manner. The Parties agree to take the necessary steps to resolve a dispute, including exchanging any relevant information, and identifying and using a process to resolve the dispute.
 - (c) With respect to a dispute that is not resolved within thirty (30) Business Days of the Dispute Date, each Party will refer issues internally to the appropriate senior members of staff of such Party and the senior members of each Party will endeavour to resolve the dispute in good faith.
 - (d) Each Party agrees that it will have internal procedures and processes in place to record and monitor any dispute for as long as the dispute remains outstanding.

SECTION 12 – CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

64. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

- 64.1 There may be situations where a conflict of interest arises between you and:
 - (a) Exinity Connect, its Affiliates, and its managers, employees, appointed representatives, tied agents, if any, or any person directly or indirectly linked to it by control; or
 - (b) another client of Exinity Connect.

Without limiting the nature of such interests, examples include where we or an Affiliate could be:

- (i) dealing or quoting prices to the markets, in an investment or a related investment, as principal for our (or its) own account or that of someone else. This could include selling to you or buying from you and also dealing with or using the services of an intermediate broker or other agent who may be an Affiliate;
- (ii) matching (e.g. by way of a cross) your transaction with that of another client by acting on their behalf as well as yours;
- (iii) buying from you and selling immediately to another client, or vice versa; or
- (iv) in a contractual or agency relationship with marketing agents or introducing brokers who may solicit investment business from you for our benefit in consideration for commission, rebate or similar remuneration payable to such agents or brokers.
- 64.2 We will take appropriate steps to identify these conflicts of interests that may arise in the course of providing our investment services to you.
- 64.3 Our Conflicts of Interest Policy sets out circumstances which may constitute or may give rise to a conflict of interest, the procedures we follow, and the measures we adopt to identify, prevent or mitigate such conflicts. A copy of our Conflicts of Interest Policy is available on our Website. The Conflicts of Interest Policy is part of these Terms. By accepting these Terms, you consent to the Conflicts of Interest Policy.

SECTION 13 – REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

65. YOUR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

- 65.1 You represent, warrant and undertake to us that:
 - (a) you will at all times obtain and comply with, and do all that is necessary to maintain in full force and effect, the authority, power, consent, licence and authorisation of a governmental or other authority;
 - (b) you will promptly provide us with accurate, complete, and non-misleading information on your financial position, domicile or any other information we may request from you, and you will promptly notify us of a change to such information;
 - (c) you will act in good faith when using the Services offered by us pursuant to these Terms;
 - (d) you will promptly notify us of the occurrence of an Event of Default or a Potential Event of Default in respect to yourself in connection with these Terms;
 - (e) you will, if so required, make appropriate disclosures to a relevant authority. You acknowledge and agree that we are entitled, and in some cases required, to report a relevant Position to a relevant regulatory authority subject to Applicable Regulations;
 - (f) you will take all reasonable steps to co-operate with us in our compliance with any obligations under Applicable Regulations, these Terms, and each Position;
 - (g) you will comply with the Applicable Regulations to which you are subject, including all tax laws and regulations, exchange control requirements and registration requirements; and
 - (h) you will provide us with such information or documents as we may reasonably require to evidence the matters referred to in this Clause 65 or to comply with Applicable Regulations.
- 65.2 You further represent, warrant, and undertake to us on the date these Terms come into force, on the date of each Order when placed, and on the date when each Position is opened or closed out, that:
 - (a) you have full legal capacity to enter into these Terms, and are not subject to a law or regulation which prevents your adherence to or performance of an obligation under these Terms;
 - (b) if you are an Entity, you are duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of your incorporation;
 - (c) if you are an Entity, you have the power to own assets and carry on business, as it is being conducted;
 - (d) you have all necessary authority, powers, consents, licences and authorisations, and have taken all necessary action, to enable you to lawfully enter into, deliver and perform your obligations under these Terms, and to grant security interests and powers referred to in these Terms;
 - (e) you are duly authorised to enter into these Terms and effect each Position (and each person entering into these Terms and each transaction on your behalf has been duly authorised to do so);
 - (f) you enter into these Terms for valid commercial purposes;
 - (g) these Terms and the obligations under each Position are binding upon you and enforceable against you, and are not contrary to:
 - (i) a law, regulation, order, judgment of a court or other agency of government applicable to you or any of your assets;
 - (ii) a contractual restriction binding on or affecting you or any of your assets; or
 - (iii) a charge or agreement by which you are bound or by which any of your assets are affected;
 - (h) in asking us to open or close a Position, you have been solely responsible for making your own independent appraisal and investigations into the risks of such action and Position, or that you have sought independent professional advice, and you have sufficient knowledge and experience to do so.
 - (i) you are able to assume the risks of any Position that you open or close;
 - (j) you are willing and financially able to sustain a total loss of funds, and trading of such Product is a suitable investment vehicle for you;
 - (k) you act as principal and sole beneficial owner in entering into these Terms and each Position (where applicable to the type of Position being contemplated) and we are not acting as a fiduciary for, or an adviser, to you in respect of that Position;
 - (l) you are the sole beneficial owner of the Equity you transfer under these Terms;
 - (m) any information you provide or have provided to us is accurate, complete, and not misleading;
 - (n) no Event of Default or Potential Event of Default has occurred and is continuing with respect to you;
 - (0) you are in compliance with the Applicable Regulations to which you are subject, including all tax laws and regulations, exchange control requirements and registration requirements.
 - (p) you will not send Orders or otherwise take any action that you have reason to believe is in breach of Applicable Regulations (including insider dealing, unlawful disclosure of inside information or market manipulation);
 - (q) you will observe the standard of behaviour reasonably expected of persons in your position and not take any step which would cause us to fail to observe the standard of behaviour reasonably expected of persons in our position;
 - (r) other than in exceptional circumstances (the existence of which is solely determined by us), you will not send funds to your Account with us from, or request that funds be sent from your Account to, a bank account other than that identified in your account application form or as otherwise agreed by us;
 - (s) you will not use our bid and offer prices for any purpose other than for your own trading purposes, and you agree not to redistribute our bid and offer prices to any other person whether such redistribution be for commercial or other purposes;
 - (t) you will not use any electronic device, software, algorithm, trading strategy or arbitrage practices that manipulates or takes unfair advantage of the way in which we construct, provide or convey our bid or offer prices or any of our Services; and
 - (u) you will not use any automated software algorithm or trading strategy other than in accordance with the terms of these Terms.

SECTION 14 – EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

66. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

- 66.1 The following circumstances will constitute an event of default:
 - (a) the voluntary or involuntary commencement of proceedings for your bankruptcy, for your winding- up, or for the appointment of an administrator or receiver in respect of you or any of your assets, or if you make an arrangement or composition with your creditors, or any other similar or analogous procedure is commenced in respect of you, or taking any corporate action to authorise any of the foregoing;
 - (b) if you are a natural person, your death or incapacity;
 - (c) you are or become unable to pay your debts (whether owed to us, our Affiliate, or any other third party) as and when they fall due;
 - (d) you fail to observe or perform your obligation (in whole or in part) under these Terms;
 - (e) you are in material breach of any provision under these Terms;
 - (f) you fail to make any payment (including payment of Margin) when due under these Terms or, where applicable, fail to promptly make or take delivery of any property when due under these Terms;
 - (g) you disaffirm, disclaim, repudiate or reject, in whole or in part, or challenge the validity of, these Terms, or purport to do any of the foregoing;
 - (h) where a Position or the realised or unrealised losses on a Position opened by you results in you exceeding a credit or other limit placed on your dealings with us, or results in the Equity in your Account falling below the Margin requirement;
 - (i) you are unable or unwilling to complete, to our satisfaction or as required under the Applicable Regulations, know-your-customer or customer due diligence checks, or provide us with proof of source of wealth and source of funds, which may be requested from time to time;
 - (j) your consolidation, amalgamation or merger with or into another entity (including your Affiliate), or any transfer or purported transfer of all or substantially all of your assets to such entity;
 - (k) any representation, warranty, or covenant made or given by you or deemed to be made or given by you under these Terms has been false or misleading in any material respect at the time it was made or given or deemed to be made or given, or becomes false or misleading in any material respect at any time;
 - (l) where we, in our sole discretion, determine that you are showing abnormal trading activity, are behaving in a way which might reasonably be considered to be abusive in accordance with Applicable Regulations, are adopting trading strategies aimed at exploiting misquotations or arbitrage, or are deemed to be acting in bad faith or attempting to abuse the information or facilities available to you by virtue of the Services;
 - (m) it is necessary or desirable to prevent what we reasonably consider is or might be a violation of any Applicable Regulation or good standard of market practice;
 - (n) we determine that, due to an event or circumstance (other than an act or breach of a party) it would become unlawful to comply with these Terms under Applicable Regulations;
 - (o) you become subject to any actual or projected investigation, fine or censure by any governmental authority which we determine, in its our discretion, has, or will have, a detrimental effect on you (including your business, reputation or standing) or your ability to perform any of your obligations under these Terms;
 - (p) an action that is taken by a tax authority, or brought by a court of competent jurisdiction against a party, or a change in application of tax, or a change in tax law or a substantial likelihood of a change in tax law, that will (or may) result in additional payments or deductions or withholding in tax on payments under these Terms (or any part thereof);
 - (q) an action is taken or event occurs which we reasonably consider might have a material adverse effect upon your or our ability to perform your or our respective obligations under these Terms;
 - (r) we reasonably believe that a circumstance exists (or that a circumstance would exist in the future) in which:
 - (i) the Underlying Market relating to a Position; or
 - (ii) the access to underlying pools of liquidity,
 - in either case is, or will be, suspended, closed, materially impaired or cannot be relied upon;
 - (s) we determine that the Underlying Market relating to a Position or the underlying liquidity pool, announces that it has ceased or will cease to list, trade or publicly quote the Product, for any reason and is not immediately re-listed, re-traded or re-quoted on the Underlying Market, as applicable;
 - (t) we determine that we are unable, after using commercially reasonable efforts, to establish, re- establish, substitute, maintain or dispense of a transaction to our pass through venue, in order to facilitate the execution of your instructions;
 - (u) any other events specified in the Schedule that applies to your Position which are designated as Events of Default; and
 - (v) any event of default (however described) occurs under any other agreement to which you and us are party, or any agreement to which you and our Affiliate are party, (each an "Event of Default" and together the "Events of Default").
- 66.2 You agree to give us notice of any Event of Default immediately upon becoming aware of its occurrence.

67. RIGHTS UNDER AN EVENT OF DEFAULT

- 67.1 If an Event of Default occurs in respect of you or your Account, we may at our absolute discretion at any time and without prior notice to you take any one or more of the following actions:
 - (a) close, part-close, amend, replace or reverse all or any of your Positions at the then prevailing quotations or prices in the relevant Markets or, if none, at such levels as we consider fair and reasonable;
 - (b) cancel or place any Order on your Account with the aim of reducing your exposure and the level of Margin or other funds owed by you to us;
 - (c) refuse to act on any further Orders placed by you;
 - (d) convert any balance on your Account into another currency;
 - (e) exercise rights of set-off under these Terms, retain any funds, investments (including any interest or other payment payable thereon) or other assets due to you or held on your behalf, and sell them without notice to you at such price and in such manner as we decide in order to realise funds to cover any amount due by you;
 - (f) close all or any of your Accounts held with us of whatever nature, and remit any monies owing to you subject to any rights of set-off;
 - (g) take or refrain from taking such other action at such time or times and in such manner as we consider necessary or appropriate to cover, reduce or eliminate our loss or liability under or in respect any of your Positions, transactions and commitments; and (h) terminate these Terms immediately.
- 67.2 If an Event of Default occurs, we may at our absolute discretion not take any of the steps specified in
- 67.1 and allow you to continue to trade with us with or without additional restrictions or limitations, and allow some or all of your open Positions to remain open. You acknowledge and agree that in such circumstances you may incur further losses.
- We will not be obliged to make any payment or delivery scheduled to be made by us under a Position, nor will we be obliged to honour any withdrawal request for all or part of your Equity in your Account, for as long as an Event of Default or a Potential Event of Default with respect to you has occurred and is continuing.

68. NO WAIVER

We will not lose any of our rights or remedies under Clause 67 by reason of any failure or delay on our part in exercising them, and no such failure or delay will constitute a waiver of any such right or remedy. Any action taken or not taken by us in connection with or pursuant to any transaction at any time after the occurrence of any Event of Default (whether or not we have knowledge of such event) will be entirely without prejudice to our right to take or not take any similar action or to refuse to take any further action at any time thereafter, and does not in any circumstances constitute as a waiver of that right or any other rights or remedies of ours should any such Event of Default have occurred.

69. TERMINATION OF THESE TERMS

- 69.1 Unless required by Applicable Regulations, you or we may terminate these Terms (and the relationship between us) without cause by giving ten (10) Business Days' prior written notice.
- 69.2 If you or we elect to terminate these Terms under this Clause 69, you undertake to close all open Positions on your Account, prior to the effective termination of these Terms (i.e. ten (10) business days after notice of the termination is provided), and agree that we will not be liable to you for any losses that you may incur as a result of any actions you may have to take as a result of such termination.
- 69.3 Upon the termination of these Terms:
 - (a) if you have not acted in accordance with Clause 69.2, any remaining open Positions on your Account will be closed, without further notice to you, and we will not be liable for a loss that may be incurred as a result of such action; and
 - (b) notwithstanding a right of set off that we may have under these Terms, all amounts payable by you to us will become immediately due and payable including:
 - (i) outstanding fees, charges, interest, and commissions;
 - (ii) dealing expenses incurred in terminating these Terms;
 - (iii) any losses and expenses resulting from closing out a Position, or settling any outstanding obligation incurred by us on your behalf or otherwise owed by you to us under these Terms; and
 - (iv) other amounts which are due and payable by you but which are unpaid.
- 69.4 Upon termination of these Terms, we will be entitled to stop providing you with access to our Services and the Platforms.
- 69.5 Termination of these Terms will not affect any of your or our rights and obligations under these Terms which are then outstanding, and the Positions will continue to be governed by these Terms until all obligations have been fully performed.

SECTION 15 - LIMITATION ON LIABILITY AND INDEMNITIES

70. EXCLUSION OF LIABILITY

- 70.1 Neither we nor our Affiliates, or our or its respective directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, will be liable for any Losses, whether arising out of negligence, breach of contract, misrepresentation or otherwise, incurred or suffered by you under these Terms (including any Position) unless such Losses are a reasonably foreseeable consequence and arise directly and solely from our or their respective gross negligence, willful default or fraud.
- 70.2 In no circumstance, will we have liability for losses suffered by you or any third party for any special or consequential damage, loss of profits, loss of goodwill or loss of business opportunity arising under or in connection with these Terms, whether arising out of negligence, breach of contract, misrepresentation or otherwise.
- 70.3 Without limitation to Clauses 70.1 and 70.2, we do not accept any liability for:
 - (a) any adverse tax, accounting or other implications of any Positions whatsoever;
 - (b) any delay or change in market conditions before any particular Position is effected;
 - (c) where information in relation to our Services is provided by third parties, any inaccuracy, errors or omissions in the information they provide us;
 - (d) any partial or non-performance of our obligations by reason of any cause beyond our reasonable control, including any breakdown, delay, malfunction or failure of transmission, communication, computer facilities or our Website, industrial action, act of terrorism, act of God, acts and regulations of any governmental or supranational bodies or authorities or the failure by the relevant intermediate broker or agent, agent or principal of our custodian, sub-custodian, dealer, Market, Underlying Market, clearing house or regulatory or self-regulatory organisation, for any reason, to perform its obligations.
- 70.4 The exclusions of, and limitations to, our liability set out in this Clause 70 are in addition to any other exclusions and limitations of our liability set out under these Terms, including Clause 49.
- 70.5 Nothing in these Terms will limit our liability for death or personal injury resulting from our negligence.
- Nothing in these Terms will exclude or restrict any duty or liability we may have to you under the regulatory system (as defined in the FCA Rules), which may not be excluded or restricted.

71. INDEMNITY

- 71.1 You shall pay to us such sums as we may from time to time require in or towards satisfaction of any debit balance on any of your Accounts with us.
- 71.2 You shall pay to us, on a full indemnity basis, any losses, liabilities, damages, costs, claims, expenses (including legal fees and administrative costs for any legal proceedings, investigatory actions or debt collection), fines, penalties, taxes, imposts, any other fees and levies which we may incur or be subjected to with respect to:
 - (a) any of your Accounts or any Position or any matching transaction on a Market, Underlying Market, or with an intermediate broker:
 - (b) any false or misleading information or declaration, or misrepresentation made by you to us or to any third party including any Market or exchange;
 - (c) a breach by you of these Terms; and
 - (d) any enforcement of our rights under these Terms or otherwise.
- 71.3 The indemnities provided by you in this Clause 71 are in addition to, and not in limitation or exclusion of, any other indemnities provided by you under these Terms, including Clause 49.

SECTION 16 - CORPORATE EVENTS

72. ADJUSTMENTS TO ORDERS AND POSITIONS

- 72.1 If any Product (or, where the Product is a derivative including CFDs, the underlying security or instrument) is subject to a Corporate Event, we will reasonably determine any appropriate action (including the opening and closing of Positions, as well as the cancelling of Orders) or any appropriate adjustment to the size, value, and number of your Orders or Positions related to that Product in order to: (a) account for the diluting or concentrating effect necessary to preserve the economic equivalent of the rights and obligations of the parties in relation to that transaction immediately prior to that Corporate Event; and (b) replicate the effect of that Corporate Event on another person with an interest in the relevant underlying Product.
- 72.2 Any adjustment or action taken by us may create tax liabilities for you. We may deduct tax when making adjustments, however it will be your responsibility to satisfy these liabilities if we did not make such deduction. We may claim or reclaim tax credits on dividends or other income on the Products.
- 72.3 Any adjustment or action taken by us under Clause 72.1 will be conclusive and binding on you and it will be effective from the date determined by us and may be retrospective in effect.

SECTION 17 – DATA PROTECTION

73. DATA PROTECTION

- 73.1 The UK GDPR and the DPA impose requirements on persons who process "personal data" as those words are defined in the UK GDPR. We agree to comply with the UK GDPR and the DPA. If the UK GDPR or the DPA also apply to you, you also agree to comply with them.
- 73.2 We shall process personal data (as defined in the UK GDPR) given to us only for the purposes of implementing these Terms or for any purposes in connection with any Services offered to you by us.
- 73.3 You acknowledge that we may, and expressly authorise us to, obtain, process, disclose and transfer, without prior notice, personal data about you (and, where applicable, individuals in respect of whom you provide us with personal data) to third parties or to other members of Exinity Group, which includes recipients located outside of the UK and the EU. You understand that the data protection legislation outside of the UK may not give you as much protection as the data protection legislation under UK law.
- 73.4 For further information on how we process your personal data and your rights under the UK GDPR, please see our privacy policy (as amended from time to time) which can be accessed on our Website.

SECTION 18 - MISCELLANEOUS

74. LANGUAGE

These Terms are supplied to you in English and we will continue to communicate with you in English for the duration of these Terms. You may receive documents and other information about us in other languages. If a document is translated into another language, this will be for information purposes only and the English version will prevail in the event of a conflict or inconsistency.

75. NOTICES

- 75.1 Any notice given under these Terms must be in writing and may be made by electronic means (including email and via the Platform), or sent by registered post or registered airmail in the case of an address for service outside the United Kingdom.
- 75.2 A notice will be considered to have been served:
 - (a) if sent by registered post or registered mail, fifteen (15) clear Business Days after the date of posting (i.e. not including the day of posting itself); or
 - (b) if sent by email, one hour after sending during business hours at its destination or, if not within business hours, at the opening of the next period of business hours, but subject to no "not sent" or "not received" message being received from the relevant email providers.
- 75.3 Any notice, instruction or other communication which we send you via e-mail will be sent to the email address you have registered with us. You must notify us immediately of any changes to your email address.
- 75.4 Each notice, instruction or other communication to you (except confirmations, statements of Account, Margin Calls, or notice of amendment to, or termination, of these Terms) is conclusive unless you provide us with a written objection within five (5) Business Days of the date on which such document was dispatched.

76. OUR RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

The rights and remedies provided under these Terms are cumulative and not exclusive of those provided by Applicable Regulations. We are under no obligation to exercise a right or remedy. A failure or delay by us in exercising our rights under these Terms (including a Position) or otherwise is not a waiver of such right or remedy. No single or partial exercise of a right or remedy will prevent further exercise of that right or remedy or the exercise of another right or remedy.

77. FORCE MAJEURE

- 77.1 Where we reasonably consider that an exceptional event specified in Clause 77.2 has occurred or is occurring, we may take one or more of the following steps without giving you notice and without being liable to you for any Losses that you may suffer as a result:
 - (a) change your Margin requirements which might mean that you may have to provide more Margin;
 - (b) limit the availability of instructions that you can give in respect of an Order or Position;
 - (c) close your open Positions at a price that we reasonably think is appropriate;
 - $\ensuremath{\text{(d)}}$ change the trading hours for a Product; and
 - (e) cancel all Orders or open Positions which are affected by the exceptional event.
- 77.2 An exceptional event is:
 - (a) any fire, strike, riot, civil unrest, terrorist act, war or industrial action;

- (b) any natural disaster such as floods, tornadoes, earthquakes and hurricanes;
- (c) any epidemic, pandemic or public health emergency of national or international concern;
- (d) any act or regulation made by a government, supra national body or authority that we believe stops us from maintaining an orderly market in relation to the Products traded on the Platform;
- (e) the suspension or closure of any exchange;
- (f) the nationalisation of any exchange by a government;
- (g) the imposition of limits or unusual terms by a government on any instrument and/or its derivative traded on the Platform;
- (h) the abandonment or failure of any instrument that we use to make our quotes;
- (i) excessive changes to the price, supply or demand of any product (or where we reasonably anticipate change);
- (j) technical failures in transmission, communication or computer facilities including power failures and electronic or equipment failures:
- (k) the failure of any supplier, intermediate broker, agent, principal custodian, sub-custodian, dealer, exchange, clearing house or regulatory organisation to perform its obligations to us;
- (l) Liquidity Providers not providing, or being unable to provide liquidity, to us;
- (m) an event which significantly disrupts the Market, which could include the premature close of trading in the market of a product, excessive movements in the price, supply or demand of a product; or
- (n) any other events described in Clause 70.3(d).

78. AMENDMENTS

- 78.1 We have the right to amend these Terms at our sole discretion, by giving you five (5) Business Days' written notice. Unless otherwise specified in the notice, such amendment will become effective on the day immediately following the five (5) Business Days. You will be deemed to have accepted such amendment if you continue to use our Services. Unless we have notified you otherwise, an amendment will not affect an outstanding Order, a Position or any legal rights or obligations which may already have arisen.
- 78.2 If you object to an amendment to the Terms under this Clause 78, you must provide us with written notice of such objection within five (5) Business Days of the amendment to the Terms. If you object to the amendments, we will attempt to address your concerns in line with our complaints handling procedure, and in any event no later than ten (10) Business Days following receipt of your objection. During this period you will not be permitted to place an Order or open a Position. If we are unable to address your concerns within the ten (10) Business Days, you or we may terminate these Terms immediately in accordance with Clause 69.

79. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

A person who is not a party to these Terms has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

80. SURVIVING TERMS

Outstanding rights and obligations (including the exclusions and limitations of our liability, the indemnities you provide to us, Clauses in this Section 18 (Miscellaneous)) and Positions will survive the termination of these Terms and will continue to be governed by these Terms and the particular clauses agreed between us in relation to such Positions until all obligations have been fully performed.

81. POLICIES

- 81.1 All Policies, in force from time to time, form part of the Agreement. By accepting, or having been deemed to accept, these Terms you confirm that you have read and understood the Policies and accept the Policies.
- 81.2 We may amend the Policies from time to time at our discretion. An amendment to a Policy will be reflected on the available version of such Policy on our Website. You are deemed to have accepted the amended and restated Policy after five (5) Business Days of its posting on our Website.
- 81.3 If you object to a Policy, please provide us with written notice within five (5) Business Days of an update of such Policy and we will attempt to resolve the issue to the extent reasonably practicable. If we are unable to come to a satisfactory solution, we may terminate these Terms and our relationship at our sole discretion.

82. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

If you are a partnership, or otherwise comprise more than one person, your liability under these Terms will be joint and several along with such other person. In the event of the death, bankruptcy, winding-up or dissolution of one or more of such persons (but without prejudice to the foregoing or our rights in respect of such person and their successors) the obligations and rights of all other connected persons under these Terms will continue in full force and effect.

83. ASSIGNMENT

83.1 These Terms will be for the benefit of and binding upon you and us, and our respective successors and assignees. You must not assign, charge or otherwise transfer or purport to assign, charge or otherwise transfer your rights or obligations under these Terms or an interest in these Terms, without our prior written consent. Any purported charge or transfer in breach of this Clause 83 (Assignment) will be void. You must not allow a trust to be declared over any of your rights under these Terms without our prior written consent.

83.2 Subject to FCA Rules, we may delegate the performance of our obligations to an appropriate third party. Such delegation will not affect our obligations under these Terms. We will be entitled to assign all or part of our benefits or rights under these Terms without your consent.

84. CONFIDENTIALITY

We will treat all information we hold about you, your Account and your Positions as confidential, even when you are no longer a client. You permit and authorise us to disclose this information to:

- (a) our Affiliates;
- (b) anyone who provides services to us or acts as our agent (including credit reference agencies or other organisations that help us make credit decisions or in the course of carrying out identity, fraud prevention or credit control checks);
- (c) anyone where we are required to do so by Applicable Regulations;
- (d) anyone to whom we transfer or propose to transfer any of our rights or duties under these Terms;
- (e) regulators and governmental agencies, in any jurisdiction, where we are requested or required to do so;
- (f) anyone where there is a public duty to disclose or our interests require disclosure; and
- (g) any other person at your request or with your consent.

85. RIGHT TO SET-OFF

- 85.1 If any Losses incurred by us, monies owed to us, or debit balances in relation to your Account, exceed all amounts held by us in relation to that Account, you must pay such excess to us whether demanded or not.
- 85.2 To the extent permitted under the Applicable Regulations and without prejudice to any other rights to which we may be entitled, we have the right to deduct (or set-off) any money or Obligation arising from these Terms or otherwise that you owe us or our Affiliates:
 - (a) from the money in your Account, and any other sums, instruments or assets held by us under these Terms or otherwise, for or to your credit; and
 - (b) by closing any or all of your open Positions, whether at a loss or at a profit and subsequently liquidate your Account for the liability payable by you.

If you have more than one Account, we will have the right to set-off any money or liability that you owe us under one Account, from the money available in your other Accounts, or from the proceeds of the sale of Products that we hold for you in your other Accounts.

86. SEVERANCE

If, at any time, any provision of these Terms is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under the law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of these Terms nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the law of any other jurisdiction will in any way be affected or impaired.

87. RECORDING AND MONITORING OF COMMUNICATIONS

We may monitor and record communications we have with you under these Terms, using monitoring devices or other technical and physical means. The monitoring and recording of communications may take place whenever we deem necessary for the purposes permitted by Applicable Regulations and to ensure regulatory compliance. Telephone conversations and other electronic communications may be recorded without use of a warning tone or notification to ensure that the material terms of a Position, and other material information relating to the Position, are promptly and accurately recorded. Such records will be our sole property and accepted by you as evidence of the Orders or instructions given. We may use such recordings and other records as evidence in court or other proceedings.

88. OUR RECORDS

Our records will be evidence of your dealings with us in connection with our Services. You will not object to the admission of our records as evidence in any proceeding because such records are not originals, are not in writing or are documents produced by a computer. You will not rely on us to comply with any of your record keeping obligations, notwithstanding the fact that records may be made available to you on request in our sole and absolute discretion.

89. YOUR RECORDS

You agree to keep adequate records in accordance with Applicable Regulations to demonstrate the nature of Orders submitted and the time at which such Orders are submitted.

90. CO-OPERATION FOR PROCEEDINGS

You agree to co-operate with us to the full extent possible in the defence or prosecution of any legal or regulatory proceedings.

91. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Agreement comprises the entire agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof and each Party acknowledges that it has not entered into the Agreement relying on any representation, statement or agreement, whether oral or in writing, other than those expressly incorporated in the Agreement.

92. GOVERNING LAW

92.1 A Position which is subject to the rules of an Underlying Market will be governed by the law applicable to it under those rules. Subject thereto, these Terms and all non-contractual obligations and other matters arising from them or in connection with them will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of England and Wales.

93 JURISDICTION

- 93.1 Subject to Applicable Regulations, each of the Parties irrevocably:
- (a) agrees for our benefit that the courts of England will have jurisdiction to settle any suit, action or other proceedings relating to these Terms ("Proceedings") and irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of such courts (provided that this will not prevent us from bringing an action in the courts of any other jurisdiction); and
- (b) waives any objection which it may have at any time to the laying of venue of any Proceedings brought in any such court and agrees not to claim that such Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum or that such court does not have jurisdiction over it.

94. SERVICE OF PROCESS

If you are situated outside the United Kingdom, process by which any Proceedings in the United Kingdom are begun may be served on you by being delivered to your registered address in the United Kingdom. This does not affect our right to serve process in another manner permitted by law.

95. INTERPRETATION

- 95.1 In these Terms, the following words and expressions will, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following meanings:
 - "Access Method" means all computer hardware and software, technology, equipment, network facilities and other resources and facilities needed to enable you to access and use an Electronic Trading Service;
 - "Account" means a trading account opened with us for the purpose of opening or closing out a Position;
 - "Account Information" means information about a client's trading activities, including records of trades that have been concluded, open Positions, margin, and cash balances that is available to view on a client's Account;
 - "Affiliate" of a person ("A") means another person controlled by A directly or indirectly, a person that controls A directly or indirectly, or a person directly or indirectly under common control with A. For the purpose of this definition: (a) "control" of a person means ownership of more than 50% of the person, or the ability to control the decisions made by the person; and (b) "person" means a natural or legal person;
 - "Agreement" has the meaning given to it in Clause 2.1;
 - "API" means Application programming Interface used for the placement of Orders and giving of dealing and account instructions.

"Applicable Regulations" mean:

- (a) the FCA Rules, and any other rules of a relevant regulatory authority;
- (b) the rules, regulations, procedures and customs of a relevant Market or an Underlying Market; and
- (c) all other applicable laws, rules, procedures, guidance and regulations (including, without limitation, accounting rules and antimoney laundering or sanctions legislation) as in force from time to time;
- "Appropriateness Assessment" has the meaning given to it in Clause 12.1;
- "Authorised Individuals" means the individuals that:
- (a) have been authorised to have access to or control of the Account;
- (b) have been authorised to act on behalf of the Entity; or
- (c) we reasonably believe have been authorised under (a) or (b);
- "Auto-stop-out" has the meaning given to it in Clause 42.2;
- "Balance" has the meaning given to it in Clause 38.1;
- "Business Days" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday in the UK;
- "CFD" means a contract for difference under which the profit or loss is determined by the difference between the opening price and the closing price of an instrument on the Underlying Market. The CFDs that we may offer will be indicated on our Website from time to time;
- "Client Money Rules" means the provisions in the FCA Rules that relate to money received by us from clients;
- "Confirmations" has the meaning given to it in Clause 63.1;
- "Corporate Events" mean any corporate action (whether it has occurred or will occur) which will bring about a change to the Product that you hold, or that we hold on your behalf, including, in relation to any Product that is a security and any derivative thereof (including CFDs), the declaration by the issuer of the Product or the security underlying that Product (as applicable) of any of the following:
- (a) a subdivision, consolidation, redenomination or reclassification of shares, a share buy-back or cancellation, or a free distribution of shares to existing shareholders by way of a bonus, capitalisation or similar issue;
- (b) a distribution to existing holders of the underlying shares of additional shares, other share capital or securities granting the right to payment of dividends or proceeds of liquidation of the issuer equally proportionately with such payments to holders of the

underlying shares, securities, rights or warrants granting the right to a distribution of shares or to purchase, subscribe or receive shares, in any case for payment (in cash or otherwise) at less than the prevailing market price per share as determined by us;

- (c) the voiding of a Product that trades, or has traded, on a when issued basis, in which case any Positions that relate to that Product will also be void; or
- (d) any other event in respect of the shares analogous to any of the above events or otherwise having a diluting or concentrating effect on the market value of the shares, whether temporary or otherwise;
- "DPA" means the UK Data Protection Act 2018;
- "Electronic Trading Services" means an electronic service (together with a related software or application) accessible by whatever means we offer, including without limitation the Platforms, trading, electronic access, order routing, API or information services, and market data that we grant you access to or make available to you either directly, through an API, or through a third-party service provider and used by you to view information or effect Positions (and "Electronic Trading Service" will mean any of those services). For the avoidance of doubt, Electronic Trading Services will include Third Party Electronic Trading Services;
- **"Entity"** means a firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust, joint venture, consortium, partnership or other entity (whether or not having separate legal personality) of two or more of the foregoing;
- "Exinity Group" means Exinity Connect and its Affiliates;
- "Equity" has the meaning given to it in Clause 38.2;
- "Event of Default" has the meaning given to it in Clause 66.1;
- "FCA" means the UK Financial Conduct Authority and its predecessors and successors;
- "FCA Rules" means the rules of the FCA as from time to time varied, amended or substituted by the FCA;
- "Free Margin" has the meaning given to it in Clause 39.3;
- "FSCS" means the UK Financial Services Compensation Scheme;
- "Fully-Paid Position" means a Position that meets the following:
- (a) the Margin is the full notional value of the Product;
- (b) the Position is held in an Exinity Connect Invest account; and
- (c) the Product in which the Position is opened is described by us with the suffix ".fp";
- "Future" means an instrument which constitutes a "future" as defined in Article 84 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Regulated Activities) Order 2001 and is traded on a Market;
- "Inducement" has the meaning given to it in Clause 20.2;
- "Introducing Party" has the meaning given to it in Clause 20.1;
- "IP Addresses" have the meaning given in Clause 50.3;
- "Liquidity Provider" means a financial institution that provides or gives access to executable bid and offer prices in respect of our Products from time to time;
- "Losses" means all direct and indirect liabilities, damages, costs, claims, expenses, fines, penalties and any other losses;
- "Manifest Error" has the meaning given to it in Clause 25.1; "Margin" has the meaning given to it in Clause 39.1; "Margin Call" has the meaning given in Clause 41.3; "Margin Level" has the meaning given in Clause 42.1;
- "Market" means a regulated market accepted by us, such as an exchange, clearing house, central clearing counterparty, multilateral trading facility or an organised trading facility;
- "Obligations" means obligations present or future, actual or contingent or prospective, owing or which may become owing by you to us under any transaction, or obligations designated by us for these purposes in writing;
- "Option" means an instrument which constitutes an "option" as defined in Article 83 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Regulated Activities) Order 2001 and is traded on a Market;
- "Order" means an instruction to open or close a Position in a Product;
- "Party" means you or Exinity Connect, and "Parties" means you and Exinity Connect as parties to the Agreement;
- "Platform" means one or more of the electronic trading platforms that we may use for the provision of our Services or to which we give you access from time to time, for example MT4, MT5, TT, CQG, and the Exinity Trading mobile application;
- "Policies" means the policies and other terms and conditions that we adopt from time to time, as amended, which are available on our Website, including the Risk Warning Notice, Order Execution Policy, Privacy Policy, and Conflicts of Interest Policy;
- "Potential Event of Default" means any event which may reasonably become an Event of Default with the passage of time, the giving of notice, the making of any determination, or any combination of the above;
- "Position" means an exposure to a Product that you have traded. A position may be opened or closed out, whether by you or by us, by either buying or selling a Product on the Platform, in accordance with the Agreement;
- "**Products**" means those products and instruments in respect of which we provide Services from time to time, for example we may offer certain CFDs, Futures and Options;
- "Risk Warning Notice" means the risk warning notice available on our Website, as this document is amended from time to time;

- "Restricted Countries" means countries and jurisdictions in which clients are domiciled or resident where we may not provide our Services due to restrictions under Applicable Regulations or restrictions under our Policies;
- "Secured Obligations" means all Obligations owing by you to us after the application of any rights of set-off arising under these Terms or by operation of law;
- "Securifies" means any equity shares (including fractional entitlements) and exchange traded funds that we may offer to trade from time to time;
- "Services" means the services described in Clause 3.1 and any other services we may provide from time to time. For the avoidance of doubt, Services include Electronic Trading Services;
- "Schedule" means a schedule to these Terms and Conditions;
- "Terms" means these terms and conditions and the Schedules hereto, as they may be amended from time to time;
- "Third Party Electronic Service Agreement" has the meaning given to it in Clause 46.1;
- "Title Transfer Agreement" has the meaning given to it in Clause 52.4;
- "UK EMIR" means Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, as amended, and regulations made under that Act;
- "UK GDPR" means Regulation (EU) 2016/679 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, as amended, and regulations made under that Act;
- "Underlying Market" means the Market for a specific financial instrument on which some of our Products are priced;
- "Website" means the information displayed on (or any other replacement or supplementary site), as updated by us from time to time.
- References in these Terms to a statute or statutory instrument or Applicable Regulations include a modification, amendment, extension or re-enactment thereof, as in force from time to time. A reference in these Terms to "document" will be construed to include an electronic document.
- 95.3 References in these Terms to the singular will also include the plural.
- References in these Terms to a person includes a body corporate, unincorporated association and partnership, natural person, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or an association or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality) of two or more of the foregoing.
- 95.5 The use of the word "including", "inclusive", "includes" and any words that follow it will not be deemed to be exhaustive.

SCHEDULE A - TRADING CONTRACTS FOR DIFFERENCE

This Schedule A sets out the additional terms that will apply to you when you trade CFDs with us. Capitalised terms used in this Schedule A have the meaning ascribed to them in Clause 95 of these Terms, unless such capitalised term is defined within this Schedule A. If a provision of this Schedule A conflicts with or differs from a provision in another part of these Terms, the provision in this Schedule A will prevail to the extent necessary.

1. WHAT IS CFD TRADING?

- 1.1 CFDs are a type of transaction which may be used to secure a profit or avoid a loss by reference to fluctuations in the value or price of an underlying instrument. Types of CFDs include but are not limited to, foreign exchange CFDs, futures CFDs, option CFDs, share CFDs, stock index CFDs, and cryptoasset CFDs. The CFDs that we offer will be indicated on our Website from time to time.
- 1.2 CFDs can only be settled in cash.

2. THE KEY RISKS OF CFD TRADING

- 2.1 CFDs are complex derivative products. CFDs can come with a high risk of losing money quickly due to the use of leverage.

 Trading with leverage magnifies your gains and losses, so small price changes in the underlying instrument can result in large losses or gains. It is therefore possible that you may lose more than your deposit in a trade.
- 22 Contingent liability transactions, which are margined, require you to make a series of payments against the investment price, instead of paying the whole amount immediately. If you trade in CFDs you may sustain a total loss of the margin you deposit to establish or maintain a Position. If the market moves against you, you may choose to pay additional margin to maintain the Position. If you fail to do so within the time required, your Position may be liquidated at a loss and you will be responsible for the resulting deficit. Even if a transaction is not margined, it may still carry an obligation to make further payments in certain circumstances over and above any amount paid when you entered into the contract.
- 23 You must fully understand the risks involved before using our Services and trading CFDs. You must take appropriate investment, financial, legal, tax and other necessary professional, independent advice where required. More information on the risks associated with trading CFDs is set out in our Risk Warning Notice (as amended form time to time) which is available on our Website. You should read this document and fully understand the risks before entering into these Terms.

3. PRODUCT PRICING

- 3.1 We will quote prices for our CFD Products at which we are prepared to deal with you. It is your responsibility to decide whether or not you wish to deal at the price quoted by us, save for where we exercise any of our rights to close a Position or the Position closes automatically under these Terms.
- 32 The prices that we quote to you would be based on the pricing from our Liquidity Providers subject to our Order execution policy. You agree that the prices we quote to you will include a spread between the sell and the buy price of a Product. The spread may not be an exact amount because it may change between the time you make an Order and the time we execute your Order. The spread may change due to market conditions.
- 33 You will find the pricing details of our Products in your onboarding pack or upon request to your authorised Exinity Connect representative.

4. COSTS AND FEES

- 4.1 We will charge you a fee for each Order, and such fee may be quoted as part of the spread of a Product.
- 42 At our discretion, we may charge a commission for executing your Orders, either in addition to, or instead of, the aforementioned fee.
- 4.3 We may also charge you a fee when you put money in or take money out of your Account, including where:
- (a) your payment method charges us a fee including payment transfer or processing fees, which we may pass on to you in whole or in part; and
- (b) we need to convert your money into another currency, including where we convert profits or losses into the base currency applicable to your Account.
- We may also charge other fees and costs for our Services and Products, including CFDs. Please refer to the information which was provided to you at onboarding, or please request this information from your authorised Exinity Connect representative, for the latest costs and fees of our Services and Products, which we may update from time to time. We will provide you with updates to the costs and fees but it is your responsibility to keep up to date with any changes, and to be aware of the commissions, charges, fees and costs that apply to your Orders and Positions, and the Services that you use.
- 45 You acknowledge that all amounts due to us may be deducted from your Account.

5. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

- 5.1 In addition to Clause 64, there may be instances in relation to CFD trading where your interest conflicts with our interests, or with that of another client, for example:
 - (a) we set both the sell price and the buy price of CFDs, both of which are quoted on the Platform; and
 - (b) when you enter into a CFD transaction, we may or may not purchase or sell the underlying instrument or product. If we buy the underlying instrument or product, we may have rights, for example voting rights if we are a shareholder, which we can exercise without notifying you.

Please refer to our Conflicts of Interest Policy where we set out potential conflicts of interest that may arise as a result of using our Services.

6. LEVERAGE AND MARGIN

- 6.1 We allow you to trade CFDs on a non-leveraged basis by opening Fully-Paid Positions. We may also allow you to trade CFDs using leverage, please see Section 6 (Leverage and Margin Trading) of the Terms.
- 6.2 Different leverage limits apply to CFDs with different underlying instruments or products. The maximum leverage limit at a particular point in time, for a particular Product, is set out in your onboarding pack.
- It is your responsibility to monitor the Equity in your Account against your potential losses, the Margin required, and whether your Margin Level is close to your stop level or the Auto-stop-out level, as we may not notify you when this happens. If you do not have enough Equity in your Account to meet the Margin requirement on a CFD Position, you may:
 - (a) close your open Position to stop you losing more money;
 - (b) partially close your open Positions;
 - (c) deposit additional money to your Account; or
 - (d) adjust your stop levels. The ability to adjust your stop levels is subject to you having the appropriate funds in your account.
- 64 We may change our Margin requirements and leverage limit at any time at our sole discretion, including in order to comply with the Applicable Regulations. Any amount needed to meet the new requirements must be satisfied in the currency we specify.

7. RIGHTS IN THE UNDERLYING INSTRUMENT

- 7.1 When you trade a CFD, you will have an economic exposure to the underlying security or instrument of the CFD, but you will not have legal ownership of any underlying products. For example, if you trade a CFD over shares, you will not have the legal rights attached to such shares, such as voting rights or rights to dividends. However, we may carry out adjustments if a Corporate Event occurs in accordance with Clause 72.
- 7.2 You acknowledge and agree that we will not transfer to you voting rights relating to a security or any other instrument underlying the CFD to which you have an open Position, or otherwise allow you to influence the exercise of voting rights held by us or by an agent on our behalf.
- 7.3 Subject to paragraph 7.4 of this Schedule, where the security or instrument underlying your CFD has margin, you are reminded that any dividend adjustment may create tax liabilities for you and we may deduct tax when making adjustments in accordance with Clause 72.2.
- 7.4 For certain CFD Products with expiry dates, our quote (which is based on the Underlying Market) will include a forecasted dividend component. Dividends adjustment in accordance with paragraph 7.3 would not apply to these Products.

8. CFDS ON CRYPTOASSETS

- 8.1 We may offer CFD Products that have exposure to the value or price of an underlying cryptoasset ("Crypto CFDs"). Cryptoassets are volatile virtual products and come with a high risk of losing money quickly. Prices can and do fluctuate significantly on any given day. Due to these price fluctuations, your CFDs with exposure to cryptoassets may significantly increase or decrease in value at any given moment, and this may result in a loss of all the capital you have invested in a Position. **Trading Crypto CFDs pose additional risks which are detailed below**.
- We base the prices of our Crypto CFDs from real cryptoasset exchanges and trading venues. Our prices are often aggregated which means that we take our prices from multiple exchanges and trading venues in order to give you the best from each. These prices may need to be normalised to allow us to aggregate them fairly for all exchanges and trading venues. As such, the prices on our Crypto CFDs may not be exactly the same as the prices you see on the exchanges and trading venues that we use. There may be instances where we are unable to quote prices for some or all Crypto CFDs.
- 8.3 The key risks when trading cryptoasset CFDs include the following:
 - (a) cryptoassets are a unique kind of product, backed by technology and trust, unlike most currencies, which are backed by governments or other legal entities, or by commodities such as gold or silver. This means there is no central bank that can take corrective measure to protect the value of cryptoassets in a crisis or issue more currency;
 - (b) the prices of cryptoassets can be extremely volatile and can fluctuate significantly in very short timeframes. From time to time, Exinity Connect may have periods during which it is closed for trading. If you hold an open Position on a Crypto CFD in this time, you would not be able to trade and not be able to close any open Position until Exinity Connect reopens trading. This means you would not be able to close the Position during this time even if there is significant adverse price movement. We call this 'gap risk';

- (c) cryptoassets are virtual products and they may become 'delisted' or unsupported at any time, which means they may no longer be offered for sale or exchange on markets. If this happens, the cryptoassets may become worthless. For some Crypto CFDs where the price is taken from a single exchange or trading venue, if the exchange or trading venue delists the underlying cryptoasset then we would remove the Crypto CFD from our Product offering and close any affected Positions. We will endeavour to give you as much notice as possible, however, there may be instances where the notice is minimal, if any;
- (d) cryptoassets are often traded using independent blockchain technology and other third party networks, which are subject to changes to their systems and to Applicable Regulations which may apply to them; and
- (e) cryptoassets are operated by underlying software protocols. The underlying protocols are subject to sudden changes in operating rules which may result in 'forks':
 - (i) a 'hard' fork is when a cryptoasset's underlying code changes and both the new and old blockchains exist side by side. Generally, this means a cryptoasset splits into two. We may offer Crypto CFDs on both of the new cryptoassets created due to the fork and we will endeavour to take the same or very similar action as the exchanges when reflecting the split on your Account. If we are unable to offer one or both of the new cryptoassets as Crypto CFDs then we may, at our discretion, make a cash adjustment to represent the value of the new cryptoasset at a price determined by us; and
 - (ii) a 'soft' fork is when a cryptoasset's underlying code changes and all users adopt the new code or, nodes of newer blockchain that can still communicate with nodes of the older version. This is often used to implement new features. These changes may affect the value of the cryptoasset (and corresponding Crypto CFD) and are reflected simply as an undated price of the CFD. We may, at our sole discretion, book a cash adjustment of a value, determined by us.
- You must carefully consider whether trading cryptoasset CFDs is suitable for you, in light of your financial circumstances. By opening a Position on a Crypto CFD, you agree and acknowledge that you have sufficient and relevant knowledge about, or experience in, trading in volatile markets, you are you are trading with money you can afford to lose, and you have a high-risk tolerance.